

# METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

# Thursday, January 28, 2016

# 4:00 pm Regular Meeting

# 700 Second Avenue South

(between Lindsley Avenue and Middleton Street) Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center (1st Floor)

# MISSION STATEMENT

The Planning Commission guides growth and development as Nashville and Davidson County evolve into a more socially, economically and environmentally sustainable community, with a commitment to preservation of important assets, efficient use of public infrastructure, distinctive and diverse neighborhood character, free and open civic life, and choices in housing and transportation.

Commissioners Present: Jim McLean, Chair Greg Adkins, Vice Chair Hunter Gee Stewart Clifton Lillian Blackshear Jessica Farr Jennifer Hagan-Dier Council Lady Burkley Allen Staff Present: Doug Sloan, Executive Director Bob Leeman, Deputy Director Kelly Adams, Administrative Services Officer III Kathryn Withers, Planning Manager II Carrie Logan, Planning Manager II Cindy Wood, Planner III Brandon Burnette, Planner III Jason Swaggart, Planner III Lisa Milligan, Planner III Greg Claxton, Planner II Andrew Withers, Planner II Latisha Birkeland, Planner II Alex Deus, Planner I Karimeh Moukaddem, Planner I Emily Lamb, Legal

Commissioners Absent: Jeff Haynes, Derrick Dalton

# J. Douglas Sloan III

Secretary and Executive Director, Metro Planning Commission Metro Planning Department of Nashville and Davidson County 800 2nd Avenue South P.O. Box 196300 Nashville, TN 37219-6300

p: (615) 862-7190; f: (615) 862-7130

# **Notice to Public**

#### Please remember to turn off your cell phones.

The Commission is a 10-member body, nine of whom are appointed by the Metro Council and one of whom serves as the mayor's representative. The Commission meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise noted. The Planning Commission makes the final decision on final site plan and subdivision applications. On all other applications, the Commission recommends an action to the Metro Council (e.g. zone changes, specific plans, overlay districts, and mandatory referrals). The Metro Council can accept or not accept the recommendation.

<u>Agendas and staff reports</u> can be viewed on-line at www.nashville.gov/mpc/agendas or weekdays from 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. at the Planning Department office located at 800 2nd Avenue South, downtown Nashville. Also, at the entrance to this meeting room, a binder of all staff reports has been placed on the table for your convenience.

<u>Meetings on TV</u> can be viewed live or shown at an alternative time on Channel 3. Visit www.nashville.gov/calendar for a broadcast schedule.

# Writing to the Commission

You can mail, hand-deliver, fax, or e-mail comments on any agenda item to the Planning Department. For the Commission to receive your comments, prior to the meeting, you must submit them by <u>noon the day of the meeting</u>. Otherwise, you will need to bring 14 copies of your correspondence to the meeting and during your allotted time to speak, distribute your comments.

Mailing Address:Metro Planning Department, 800 2nd Avenue South, P.O. Box 196300, Nashville, TN 37219-6300Fax:(615) 862-7130E-mail:planningstaff@nashville.gov

# **Speaking to the Commission**

If you want to appear in-person before the Commission, view our tips on presentations on-line at

www.nashville.gov/mpc/pdfs/mpc\_mtg\_presentation\_tips.pdf and our summary regarding how Planning Commission public hearings are conducted at www.nashville.gov/mpc/docs/meetings/Rules\_and\_procedures.pdf. Briefly, a councilmember may speak at the very beginning of the commission meeting, after the individual item is presented by staff, or after all persons have spoken in favor or in opposition to the request. Applicants speak after staff presents, then, those in favor speak followed by those in opposition. The Commission may grant the applicant additional time for a rebuttal after all persons have spoken. Maximum speaking time for an applicant is 10 minutes, individual speakers is 2 minutes, and a neighborhood group 5 minutes, provided written notice was received prior to the meeting from the neighborhood group.

- Day of meeting, get there at least 15 minutes ahead of the meeting start time to get a seat and to fill-out a "Request to Speak" form (located on table outside the door into this meeting room).
- Give your completed "Request to Speak" form to a staff member.
- For more information, view the Commission's Rules and Procedures, at www.nashville.gov/mpc/pdfs/main/rules\_and\_procedures.pdf

# Legal Notice

As information for our audience, if you are not satisfied with a decision made by the Planning Commission today, you may appeal the decision by petitioning for a writ of cert with the Davidson County Chancery or Circuit Court. Your appeal must be filed within 60 days of the date of the entry of the Planning Commission's decision. To ensure that your appeal is filed in a timely manner, and that all procedural requirements have been met, please be advised that you should contact independent legal counsel.

The Planning Department does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, religion, creed or disability in admission to, access to, or operations of its programs, services, or activities. Discrimination against any person in recruitment, examination, appointment, training, promotion, retention, discipline or any other employment practices because of non-merit factors shall be prohibited. For ADA inquiries, contact Josie Bass, ADA Compliance Coordinator, at (615) 862–7150 or josie.bass@nashville.gov. For Title VI inquiries, contact Melody Fowler-Green, executive director of Human Relations at (615) 880-3374. For all employment–related ADA inquiries, call David Sinor at (615) 862-6735 or e-mail david.sinor@nashville.gov.

# **MEETING AGENDA**

# A. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 4:06 p.m.

# B. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Mr. Adkins moved and Mr. Gee seconded the motion to adopt the agenda. (7-0)

Ms. Farr arrived at 4:07 p.m.

# C. RECOGNITION OF COUNCILMEMBERS

Councilmember Bedne spoke in support of Items 3a and 3b.

# D. NASHVILLENEXT UPDATE

Mr. Claxton presented the NashvilleNext update.

# E. ITEMS FOR DEFERRAL / WITHDRAWAL

# 1. 2015S-001R-001 SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AMENDMENT

- 2. 2015CP-000-001 BORDEAUX-WHITES CREEK COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT
- 5. 2016SP-010-001 1023 PETWAY AVENUE SP
- 6. 2015S-174-001 WELCH PROPERTY SUBDIVISION, SECTION II
- 10. 2016Z-007PR-001
- 18. 2016S-011-001 SKYLINE RIVERFRONT ESTATES
- **20. 2016S-025-001** BEAUMONT PLACE, RESUB LOTS 7 & 8

Ms. Blackshear moved and Mr. Clifton seconded the motion to approve the Deferred Items. (8-0)

Ms. Blackshear recused herself from Item 6.

# F. CONSENT AGENDA

**NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:** Items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on at a single time. No individual public hearing will be held, nor will the Commission debate these items unless a member of the audience or the Commission requests that the item be removed from the Consent Agenda.

# 3a. 2015CP-012-002

SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT

#### 3b. 2015SP-098-001 CEDARWOOD SP

- 4. 2016SP-001-001 311 CARTER SP
- 8. 2016Z-003TX-001
- 11. 2016Z-010PR-001
- 12. 2016Z-011PR-001
- 15. 2016NL-001-001 4909 INDIANA AVENUE
- 16. 2002UD-001-009 GREEN HILLS UDO SIGN MODIFICATION
- 17. 2015S-179-001 G.W. HARDING'S ADDITION, RESUB LOTS 67 & 68
- 19. 2016S-018-001 HAYNIE'S CENTRAL PARK PLAN, RESUB LOTS 59-62
- 21. Employee contract renewal for Anita McCaig

# 25. Accept the Director's Report and Approve Administrative Items

- Mr. Gee moved and Mr. Clifton seconded the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. (8-0)
- Ms. Blackshear recused herself from Items 3a, 3b, and 16.

# G. PREVIOUSLY DEFERRED ITEMS

The items below were deferred from a previous Planning Commission meeting at the request of the applicant or by the commissioners. For Community Plan Policy items, see H. Community Plan Policy Changes and Associated Cases.

# Subdivision: Regulations Amendments

# 1. 2015S-001R-001

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AMENDMENT Staff Reviewer: Carrie Logan

A request to amend the Subdivision Regulations of Nashville-Davidson County, adopted on March 9, 2006, and last amended on January 9, 2014, requested by the Metro Planning Department, applicant. Staff Recommendation: Defer to the February 11, 2016, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2015S-001R-001 to the February 11, 2016, Planning Commission meeting. (8-0)

# Community Plan Amendments

# 2. 2015CP-000-001

#### BORDEAUX-WHITES CREEK COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT Various Maps, Various Parcel(s) Council District 01 (Loniel Greene, Jr.); 03 (Brenda Haywood) Staff Reviewer: Anita McCaig

A request to amend the Bordeaux-Whites Creek Community Plan: 2015 Update by changing community character policies for properties within 11 areas deferred from the June 22, 2015, Metro Planning Commission hearing to adopt NashvilleNext, requested by the Metro Planning Department, applicant. Staff Recommendation: Defer to the May 26, 2016, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2015CP-000-001 to the May 26, 2016, Planning Commission meeting. (8-0)

# 3a. 2015CP-012-002

# SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT

Map 186, Parcel(s) 013.01, 011-014 Council District 31 (Fabian Bedne) Staff Reviewer: Cynthia Wood

A request for a Major Amendment to the Southeast Community Plan to change the Community Character Policies from T3 Suburban Residential Corridor, T3 Neighborhood Center, and Conservation to T3 Suburban Community Center for properties located at 6960 and 6968 Nolensville Pike, Nolensville Pike (unnumbered) and 7203 and 7235 Old Burkitt Road (8.22 acres), requested by Gresham, Smith and Partners, applicant; 6968 Nolensville Road, LLC, owner. (See Associated Case #2015SP-098-001).

# Staff Recommendation: Approve.

# APPLICANT REQUEST

Amend the Community Character policy for properties located at 6960 and 6968 Nolensville Pike, Nolensville Pike (unnumbered) and 7203 and 7205 Old Burkitt Road from T3 Suburban Residential Corridor, T3 Suburban Neighborhood Center, and Conservation to T3 Suburban Community Center.

## Major Plan Amendment

A request for a Major Amendment to the Southeast Community Plan to change the Community Character Policies from T3 Suburban Residential Corridor, T3 Neighborhood Center, and Conservation to T3 Suburban Community Center for properties located at 6960 and 6968 Nolensville Pike, Nolensville Pike (unnumbered) and 7203 and 7235 Old Burkitt Road (8.22 acres).

#### SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN – AMENDMENT Current Policies

<u>T3 Suburban Residential Corridor (T3 RC)</u> is intended to preserve, enhance and create suburban residential corridors. T3 RC areas are located along prominent arterial-boulevard or collector-avenue corridors that are served by multiple modes of transportation and are designed and operated to enable safe, attractive and comfortable access and travel for all users. T3 RC areas provide high access management and are served by moderately connected street networks, sidewalks, and existing or planned mass transit.

<u>T3 Suburban Neighborhood Center (T3 NC)</u> is intended to enhance and create suburban neighborhood centers that serve suburban neighborhoods generally within a 5 minute drive. They are pedestrian friendly areas, generally located at intersections of suburban streets that contain commercial, mixed use, residential, and institutional land uses. T3 NC areas are served with well-connected street networks, sidewalks, and mass transit leading to surrounding neighborhoods and open space. Infrastructure and transportation networks may be enhanced to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

<u>Conservation (CO)</u> is intended to preserve environmentally sensitive land features through protection and remediation. CO policy applies in all Transect Categories except T1 Natural, T5 Center, and T6 Downtown. CO policy identifies land with sensitive environmental features including, but not limited to, steep slopes, floodway/floodplains, rare or special plant or animal habitats, wetlands and unstable or problem soils. The guidance for preserving or enhancing these features varies with what Transect they are in and whether or not they have already been disturbed.

## **Proposed Policy**

<u>T3 Suburban Community Center (T3 CC)</u> is intended to enhance and create suburban community centers that serve suburban communities generally within a 10 to 20 minute drive. They are pedestrian friendly areas, generally located at prominent intersections that contain mixed use, commercial and institutional land uses, with transitional residential land uses in mixed use buildings or serving as a transition to adjoining Community Character Policies. T3 CC areas are served by highly connected street networks, sidewalks and existing or planned mass transit leading to surrounding neighborhoods and open space. Infrastructure and transportation networks may be enhanced to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

## BACKGROUND

The community plan amendment was requested in conjunction with zone change application 2015SP-098-001. 2015SP-098-001 is a request to change the zoning from AR2a to Specific Plan – Mixed Use for 6960 and 6968 Nolensville Pike and 7203 and 7235 Old Burkitt Road. An additional property, Nolensville Pike (unnumbered), was added to the proposed amendment study area at the direction of the Planning Department. Nolensville Pike (unnumbered), which lies between the boundaries of the zone change site and the existing T3 CC area on the south side of Burkitt Road, would have been the only property to remain in T3 NC policy if the amendment is to be adopted.

The previous (2004) update of the Southeast Community Plan was amended in 2009 to change the policies on the south side of Burkitt Road from Neighborhood General and Neighborhood Center to T3 CC. The 2009 policy change left a portion of the original Neighborhood Center policy around the intersection of Burkitt Road and Nolensville Pike. The Natural Conservation (now CO policy) applied to what the Planning Department's GIS data indicated was a blue line stream and the Corridor General (now T3 RC) policy north of the apparent blue line stream remained in place. The Water Services Department Stormwater Management Division has provided documentation that the area shown as CO policy is a wet weather conveyance rather than a blue line stream. CO policy does not apply to wet weather conveyances.

#### COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

• Community meeting and public hearing notices were mailed out to property owners within 1,300 feet of the amendment area on October 12, 2015, and the notice was also placed on the Planning Department website. The community meeting was held on October 27, 2015, at the National College of Business and Technology at 1638 Bell Road. It was attended by 6 people in addition to Councilman Fabian Bedne, the development team, and Metro Planning staff. There was a general consensus that more consumer services were needed in the immediate area. Attendees did not think that the T3 CC area around the intersection of Nolensville Pike and Concord Road (located about a mile north of Burkitt Road) was sufficient to meet current or future consumer demand. However, there were some concerns that were raised. The concerns expressed by attendees were:

That the potential building heights supported by T3 CC policy would be too tall in light of the existing and desired character of the surrounding area, its distance from areas closer to the central city, which attendees feared would create additional traffic problems given the area's location near the county line where transit service would continue to be limited for several years.
Site access problems, either along Nolensville Pike or along Burkitt Road, because of traffic volumes and speeds,

intersection spacing, and sight distance.

• The uncertainties about the timing of the planned widening of Nolensville Pike and other issues associated with the widening, including extent and locations of future right-of-way, the specifics of realigning the intersection of Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road, and other design details.

• The housing types supported by the existing T3 RC and T3 NE policies were perceived as being out of character with what is desired by existing residents, particularly because of the predominance of townhouses.

• Additional nearby townhouse development proposals that are currently in the pipeline, some of which have not yet been filed with the Planning Department.

# ANALYSIS

Changes in conditions and policy direction since the 2004 Southeast Community Plan Update support favorable consideration of T3 CC policy in the amendment area. These include the 2010 amendment from Neighborhood Center and Neighborhood General to T3 Suburban Community Center policy on the south side of the intersection of Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road and significant residential growth adjacent to the Nolensville Pike corridor in both Davidson and Williamson Counties. Applying T3 CC policy in the amendment area would result in a more logical arrangement of development around the intersection of Burkitt Road and Nolensville Pike by placing the same policy on both sides of a major intersection as outlined in the Application section of T3 CC policy in the Community Character Manual. It would also provide needed consumer services to this increasing population.

In addition, the documentation provided by the Water Services Department Stormwater Management Division that the area shown as CO policy is a wet weather conveyance rather than a blue line stream is sufficient justification to remove the CO Policy and replace it with T3 CC policy. CO policy does not apply to wet weather conveyances.

# STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the amendment request.

Approve. (7-0-1), Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2016-29

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2015CP-012-001 is Approved. (7-0-1)"

# 3b. 2015SP-098-001

**CEDARWOOD SP** Map 186, Parcel(s) 013.01, 011-013 Council District 31 (Fabian Bedne) Staff Reviewer: Jason Swaggart

A request to rezone from Agricultural/Residential (AR2a) to Specific Plan-Commercial (SP-C) zoning for properties located at 6960 and 6968 Nolensville Pike and 7203 and 7235 Old Burkitt Road, at the corner of Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road, (6.72 acres), to permit a maximum of 5,200 square feet of automobile convenience and restaurant uses and all uses permitted within the CL zoning district with some exceptions, requested by Gresham Smith & Partners, applicant; 6968 Nolensville Road, LLC, owner. (See Associated Case # 2015CP-012-002).

Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions and disapprove without all conditions if the associated policy amendment is approved. If the associated policy amendment is not approved, then staff recommends disapproval.

# APPLICANT REQUEST

Zone change to permit a commercial development.

## Zone Change

A request to rezone from Agricultural/Residential (AR2a) to Specific Plan-Commercial (SP-C) zoning for properties located at 6960 and 6968 Nolensville Pike and 7203 and 7235 Old Burkitt Road, at the corner of Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road, (6.72 acres), to permit a maximum of 5,200 square feet of automobile convenience and restaurant uses and all uses permitted within the CL zoning district with some exceptions.

#### Existing Zoning

<u>Agricultural/Residential (AR2a)</u> requires a minimum lot size of two acres and intended for uses that generally occur in rural areas, including single-family, two-family, and mobile homes at a density of one dwelling unit per two acres. The AR2a district is intended to implement the natural conservation or rural land use policies of the general plan. *AR2a would permit a maximum of 3 lots with 3 duplexes for a total of 6 units.* 

#### Proposed Zoning

<u>Specific Plan-Commercial (SP-C)</u> is a zoning district category that provides for additional flexibility of design, including the relationship of streets to buildings, to provide the ability to implement the specific details of the General Plan. This Specific Plan includes commercial uses.

CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS

#### SOUTHEAST COMMUNITY PLAN Current Policies

<u>T3 Suburban Residential Corridor (T3 RC)</u> is intended to preserve, enhance and create suburban residential corridors. T3 RC areas are located along prominent arterial-boulevard or collector-avenue corridors that are served by multiple modes of transportation and are designed and operated to enable safe, attractive and comfortable access and travel for all users. T3 RC areas provide high access management and are served by moderately connected street networks, sidewalks, and existing or planned mass transit.

#### **Proposed Elevations**

<u>T3 Suburban Neighborhood Center (T3 NC)</u> is intended to enhance and create suburban neighborhood centers that serve suburban neighborhoods generally within a 5 minute drive. They are pedestrian friendly areas, generally located at intersections of suburban streets that contain commercial, mixed use, residential, and institutional land uses. T3 NC areas are served with well-connected street networks, sidewalks, and mass transit leading to surrounding neighborhoods and open space. Infrastructure and transportation networks may be enhanced to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

<u>Conservation (CO)</u> is intended to preserve environmentally sensitive land features through protection and remediation. CO policy applies in all Transect Categories except T1 Natural, T5 Center, and T6 Downtown. CO policy identifies land with sensitive environmental features including, but not limited to, steep slopes, floodway/floodplains, rare or special plant or animal habitats, wetlands and unstable or problem soils. The guidance for preserving or enhancing these features varies with what Transect they are in and whether or not they have already been disturbed.

# **Proposed Policy**

<u>T3 Suburban Community Center (T3 CC)</u> is intended to enhance and create suburban community centers that serve suburban communities generally within a 10 to 20 minute drive. They are pedestrian friendly areas, generally located at prominent intersections that contain mixed use, commercial and institutional land uses, with transitional residential land uses in mixed use buildings or serving as a transition to adjoining Community Character Policies. T3 CC areas are served by highly connected street networks, sidewalks and existing or planned mass transit leading to surrounding neighborhoods and open space. Infrastructure and transportation networks may be enhanced to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

## Consistent with Policy?

The proposed SP is not consistent with the existing T3 RC policy, which only supports residential development; however the proposed SP is consistent with the proposed T3CC policy. While the proposed SP calls for an automobile oriented business, the plan calls for enhanced sidewalks along Nolensville Pike, Burkitt Road and Old Burkitt Road. The proposed sidewalks along Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road are consistent with the Major and Collector Street Plan (MCSP). Old Burkitt Road is not in the MCSP. The proposed SP also provides pedestrian connections form the building to the sidewalks along Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road. The plan calls for landscaping along the frontage of Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road, which is intended to soften the parking areas and fuel area from the sidewalk. The plan calls for the building and columns for the gas canopy to be brick. All these improvements will provide for a design that is in keeping with the goals of the proposed T3 CC policy.

# PLAN DETAILS

The approximately 6.72 acre site which consists of four properties is located at the northeast corner of Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road just north of the town of Nolensville. Old Burkitt Road runs along the east and northeast property boundary. A majority of the site is vacant, but there is a single-family home located on the two most northern parcels at the southeast intersection of Nolensville Pike and Old Burkitt Road.

#### Site Plan

The plan calls for a 3,327 square foot automobile convenience market, and a 1,373 square foot restaurant. Both uses would be located in the same structure. The plan would permit all uses that are permitted within the CL zoning district with the exception of used and new automobile sales, and automobile repair. The plan would permit a maximum floor area of 5,200 square feet. Architectural elevations are provided. As proposed, the building will be brick and has windows and entry doors on both sides of the building. The plan calls for an outside eating area along the south side of the building.

Access into the site is provided from one drive along Nolensville Pike and another drive along Burkitt Road. Parking is shown along all sides of the building. The SP requires that the number of parking spaces be consistent with Metro Zoning Code requirements.

A Type C-2 Landscape Buffer Yard is shown along the Old Burkitt Road frontage. The plan provides a landscaping detail for the landscaping area shown along Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road, but details are not provide for interior of the buffer yard.

Free standing sign details are provided. The plan calls for two eight foot tall monument style sign. A portion of the sign is digital to permit the display of gas prices. The overall sign area is approximately 45 feet. As proposed, building signage would be consistent with Metro Zoning Code requirements for the CL zoning district.

# ANALYSIS

Commercial uses are not consistent with the T3 RC policy that covers a portion of the subject site. If the Commission were to approve the associated policy amendment, which *could* support commercial uses, then staff would recommend approval with conditions. As proposed, the plan is consistent with the proposed T3 CC policy. The proposed SP calls for sidewalks consistent with the MCSP, and landscaping along all street frontages, which would enhance the pedestrian zone along both roadways. The plan also calls for adequate sidewalk connections to the proposed building, which would make it safer for a pedestrian to navigate from the public sidewalk to the proposed building.

Staff is recommending a condition that the proposed SP be limited to automobile convenience and restaurant uses as depicted on the SP plan. Staff finds that this is necessary, because the plan does not provide any details for other uses. It is important that all Public Works conditions be required, as they are intended to improve traffic flow and safety. Most of the requirements are based on the recommendations by the Traffic Impact Study (TIS) that was submitted by the applicant. Additional conditions are requirements from the Metro Traffic Engineer that are a result of their review of the TIS.

## FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION

#### Approve with conditions

• Fire Code issues for the structures will be addressed at permit application review.

#### STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION Approved

# PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

#### Approved with conditions

• The developer's final construction drawings shall comply with the design regulations established by the Department of Public Works. Final design may vary based on field conditions.

• Prior to the building permit application. Submit copy of recorded ROW dedication at both intersections prior to building permit signoff by MPW. Dedications should be to the back of the proposed sidewalks.

• If sidewalks are required along Old Burkitt, Burkitt, or Nolensville Road, then they are to be constructed per MPW standards and specifications, with appropriate lane widths adjoining the MPW standard curb and gutter with grass strip per the MCSP.

• Comply with MPW Traffic Engineer conditions.

## TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION

#### Approve with conditions

In accordance with TIS findings and site plan dated 11/17/2015:

1. Developer shall construct an extension of the SB left turn lane on Nolensville Pk with a minimum of 150 ft. of storage with transition per AASHTO standards at project access drive. Provide adequate sight distance at Nolensville access driveway. 2. Developer shall reconstruct Old Burkitt Rd to align with the approved Burkitt Commons SP driveway on Burkitt Rd. and provide adequate sight distance.

3. Developer shall construct an additional project access driveway to the relocated section of Old Burkitt Rd with adequate sight distance.

4. Developer shall construct a 3 lane cross section along Burkitt Rd frontage with adequate transition per AASHTO standards.

5. Additional queue analysis will be required to determine if adequate storage is provided in the center turn lane to allow WB left turn lane storage on Burkitt Rd at Nolensville Rd and EB left turn lane storage for 41/54 left turn vehicles at proposed Burkitt Rd project driveway location without LTL conflicts and spill over into the thru lanes.

6. Project shall dedicate ROW to allow future Nolensville Pk and Burkitt Rd road construction per TDOT plans.

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single-Family Residential (210)	6.72	0.5 D	3 U	29	3	4

## Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: AR2a

#### Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: SP-C

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Automobile Convenience (945)	6.72	-	20 pumps 3,327 SF	3256	202	268

## Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: SP-C

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Restaurant (934)	6.72	-	1,373 SF	682	68	47

Traffic changes between maximum: **AR2a** and **SP-C** 

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-		+3,909	+67	+311

# WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION

## Approved with conditions

Approved as a Preliminary SP only. Public construction plans must be submitted and approved prior to Final SP approval.

# STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions and disapproval without all conditions if the associated policy amendment is approved. If the associated policy amendment is not approved, then staff recommends disapproval.

## CONDITIONS

1. Uses shall be limited to automobile convenience and restaurant.

2. The maximum floor area within the SP shall be 5,200 square feet.

3. A landscape strip along the northern perimeter of the parking area shall be provided consistent with the perimeter landscaping requirements of the Metro Zoning Code, and shall be shown on the final site plan.

4. A landscape strip along the entrance drive to Old Burkitt and/or Burkitt consistent with the perimeter landscaping requirements of the Metro Zoning Code shall be provided, and shall be shown on the final site plan.

5. Development shall meet the Tree Density requirements of the Metro Zoning Code.

6. A Standard C – Landscape Buffer Yard is required along Old Burkitt Road. A buffer yard may not be required within areas where Old Burkitt may be realigned. Final determination of the buffer yard requirement along the realigned portion of Old Burkitt Road shall be determined with the final site plan.

7. Building signage shall be consistent with the Metro Zoning Code as permitted in the MUL zoning district.

8. A Right-of-Way dedication not to exceed five feet in width shall be provided along Old Burkitt Road.

9. There shall be no direct access to Burkitt Road.

10. A ROW reservation shall be provided to accommodate the future TDOT improvements along Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road. Final ROW reservation shall be determined with the final site plan.

11. Final location for sidewalks along Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road shall be determined with the final site plan. If TDOT has approved roadway improvements for Nolensville, then the sidewalk shall be located in accordance with the approved TDOT plan.

12. Additional ROW shall be provided Along Old Burkitt Road in order for the sidewalk along Old Burkitt Road to extend to Nolensville Pike for a 5' clear path of travel around the gas line.

13. Developer shall reconstruct Old Burkitt Rd to align with the approved Burkitt Commons SP driveway on Burkitt Rd. and provide adequate sight distance.

14. Developer shall construct an additional project access driveway to the relocated section of Old Burkitt Rd with adequate sight distance.

15. Developer shall construct a 3 lane cross section along Burkitt Rd frontage with adequate transition per AASHTO standards.

16. Additional queue analysis will be required to determine if adequate storage is provided in the center turn lane to allow WB left turn lane storage on Burkitt Rd at Nolensville Rd and EB left turn lane storage for 41/54 left turn vehicles at proposed Burkitt

Rd project driveway location without LTL conflicts and spill over into the thru lanes.

Project shall reserve ROW to allow future Nolensville Pk and Burkitt Rd road construction per TDOT plans.
 The developer's final construction drawings shall comply with the design regulations established by the Department of

Public Works. Final design may vary based on field conditions. 19. Prior to the building permit application. Submit copy of recorded ROW dedication at both intersections prior to building

permit signoff by MPW. Dedications should be to the back of the proposed sidewalks. 20. If sidewalks are required along Old Burkitt, Burkitt, or Nolensville Road, then they are to be constructed per MPW standards and specifications, with appropriate lane widths adjoining the MPW standard curb and gutter with grass strip per the MCSP. 21. If a development standard, not including permitted uses, is absent from the SP plan and/or Council approval, the property shall be subject to the standards, regulations and requirements of the MUL zoning district as of the date of the applicable

request or application. Uses are limited as described in the Council ordinance.

22. The Preliminary SP plan is the site plan and associated documents. If applicable, remove all notes and references that indicate that the site plan is illustrative, conceptual, etc.

23. Add the following note to the plan: The final site plan shall depict a minimum 5 foot clear path of travel for pedestrian ways, including public sidewalks, and the location of all existing and proposed obstructions. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing obstructions within the path of travel shall be relocated to provide a minimum of 5 feet of clear access.

24. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.

Approve with conditions and disapprove without all conditions. (7-0-1), Consent Agenda

## Resolution No. RS2016-30

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2015SP-098-001 is **Approved with conditions and disapproved without all conditions. (7-0-1)**"

# CONDITIONS

1. Uses shall be limited to automobile convenience and restaurant.

2. The maximum floor area within the SP shall be 5,200 square feet.

3. A landscape strip along the northern perimeter of the parking area shall be provided consistent with the perimeter landscaping requirements of the Metro Zoning Code, and shall be shown on the final site plan.

4. A landscape strip along the entrance drive to Old Burkitt and/or Burkitt consistent with the perimeter landscaping requirements of the Metro Zoning Code shall be provided, and shall be shown on the final site plan.

5. Development shall meet the Tree Density requirements of the Metro Zoning Code.

6. A Standard C – Landscape Buffer Yard is required along Old Burkitt Road. A buffer yard may not be required within areas where Old Burkitt may be realigned. Final determination of the buffer yard requirement along the realigned portion of Old Burkitt Road shall be determined with the final site plan.

7. Building signage shall be consistent with the Metro Zoning Code as permitted in the MUL zoning district.

8. A Right-of-Way dedication not to exceed five feet in width shall be provided along Old Burkitt Road.

9. There shall be no direct access to Burkitt Road.

10. A ROW reservation shall be provided to accommodate the future TDOT improvements along Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road. Final ROW reservation shall be determined with the final site plan.

11. Final location for sidewalks along Nolensville Pike and Burkitt Road shall be determined with the final site plan. If TDOT has approved roadway improvements for Nolensville, then the sidewalk shall be located in accordance with the approved TDOT plan.

12. Additional ROW shall be provided Along Old Burkitt Road in order for the sidewalk along Old Burkitt Road to extend to Nolensville Pike for a 5' clear path of travel around the gas line.

13. Developer shall reconstruct Old Burkitt Rd to align with the approved Burkitt Commons SP driveway on Burkitt Rd. and provide adequate sight distance.

14. Developer shall construct an additional project access driveway to the relocated section of Old Burkitt Rd with adequate sight distance.

15. Developer shall construct a 3 lane cross section along Burkitt Rd frontage with adequate transition per AASHTO standards.

16. Additional queue analysis will be required to determine if adequate storage is provided in the center turn lane to allow WB left turn lane storage on Burkitt Rd at Nolensville Rd and EB left turn lane storage for 41/54 left turn vehicles at proposed Burkitt Rd project driveway location without LTL conflicts and spill over into the thru lanes.

Project shall reserve ROW to allow future Nolensville Pk and Burkitt Rd road construction per TDOT plans.
 The developer's final construction drawings shall comply with the design regulations established by the

Department of Public Works. Final design may vary based on field conditions.

19. Prior to the building permit application. Submit copy of recorded ROW dedication at both intersections prior to building permit signoff by MPW. Dedications should be to the back of the proposed sidewalks.

20. If sidewalks are required along Old Burkitt, Burkitt, or Nolensville Road, then they are to be constructed per MPW standards and specifications, with appropriate lane widths adjoining the MPW standard curb and gutter with grass strip per the MCSP.

21. If a development standard, not including permitted uses, is absent from the SP plan and/or Council approval, the property shall be subject to the standards, regulations and requirements of the MUL zoning district as of the date of the applicable request or application. Uses are limited as described in the Council ordinance.

22. The Preliminary SP plan is the site plan and associated documents. If applicable, remove all notes and references that indicate that the site plan is illustrative, conceptual, etc.

23. Add the following note to the plan: The final site plan shall depict a minimum 5 foot clear path of travel for pedestrian ways, including public sidewalks, and the location of all existing and proposed obstructions. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing obstructions within the path of travel shall be relocated to provide a minimum of 5 feet of clear access.

24. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.

# Specific Plans

# 4. 2016SP-001-001

**311 CARTER SP** Map 119-09, Parcel(s) 139 Council District 16 (Mike Freeman) Staff Reviewer: Jason Swaggart

A request to rezone from CS to SP-R zoning for property located at 311 Carter Street, approximately 260 feet west of Foster Avenue (3.5 acres), to permit up to 92 residential units, requested by Dale & Associates, applicant; War Eagle 1, Partnership, GP, owner.

#### Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions and disapproval without all conditions.

# APPLICANT REQUEST

## Rezone to permit a residential development.

#### Zone Change

A request to rezone from Commercial Services (CS) to Specific Plan – Residential (SP-R) zoning for property located at 311 Carter Street, approximately 260 feet west of Foster Avenue (3.5 acres), to permit up to 92 residential units.

## **Existing Zoning**

<u>Commercial Service (CS)</u> is intended for retail, consumer service, financial, restaurant, office, self-storage, light manufacturing and small warehouse uses.

#### Proposed Zoning

<u>Specific Plan-Residential (SP-R)</u> is a zoning district category that provides for additional flexibility of design, including the relationship of streets to buildings, to provide the ability to implement the specific details of the General Plan. This Specific Plan includes only one residential building type.

# CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS

- Supports Infill Development
- Provides a Range of Housing Choices
- Provides a Variety of Transportation Choices
- Creates Walkable Neighborhoods

The area is served by adequate infrastructure. Development in areas with adequate infrastructure is more appropriate than development in areas not served with adequate infrastructure, such as substandard roads, water and sewer, because it does not burden Metro with the cost of upgrading or building new infrastructure. The plan provides an additional housing option to the immediate area, which are important to serve a wide range of people with different housing needs. The plan would increase the residential density in the immediate area. Given the sites proximity to Nolensville Pike, the additional density is appropriate as it supports the Nolensville commercial corridor. The additional density and proximity to Nolensville Pike also supports public transportation and walkable neighborhoods. People living in more dense mixed-use areas are more likely to use public transit because every day services are located more closely and it can be more efficient than driving oneself. The plan also calls for a sidewalk connection to the existing walking path at the Coleman Park and Community Center.

#### SOUTH NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving (T4 NE)</u> is intended to create and enhance urban neighborhoods that fit in with the general character of existing urban neighborhoods, with opportunities for housing choice and improved pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity. The resulting development pattern may have higher densities than existing urban neighborhoods and/or smaller lot sizes, with a broader range of housing types providing housing choice. This reflects the scarcity of easily developable land without sensitive environmental features and the cost of developing housing.

#### Consistent with Policy?

Yes. The proposed SP is consistent with the T4 NE policy. The policy supports all types of residential uses, and recognizes that development patterns may change over time. In this case, there is not a consistent development pattern in the immediate area. The surrounding area consists of light industrial, commercial, office and single and two-family residential uses. The area to the north along Fannie Williams Street, which dead-ends into the property, consists of single and two-family residential uses. This area is also located within the T4 NE policy and it is likely that the area will transition into higher density residential development over time. The additional density is appropriate given the proximity to Nolensville Pike. The plan is also designed so that the only building facing a public street is set close to the street consistent with the urban form supported by the policy.

# PLAN DETAILS

The site is located on the southwest side of Carter Street, just west of the intersection of Carter Street and Foster Avenue. Nolensville Pike is approximately 300 feet to the west, but there is no direct access from the site to Nolensville Pike. The site is just north of the Coleman Park and Community Center. The site is approximately 3.5 acres and is developed and contains a large metal building. The current land use is classified as a lumber yard. There is a small stream located along the southern property line, but there are no other known environmental constraints.

## Site Plan

The plan calls for a maximum of 92 residential units. Units are divided between four buildings (A - D). Building A, which is located adjacent to Carter Street, is three stories and contains 30 units. The two buildings located behind Building A (Buildings B and C) are also three stories in height. These building are oriented in a way that creates a central green space. Building B contains 24 units and Building C contains 18 units. Building D is located behind Buildings B and C near the rear property line. It is four stories in height and contains 20 units. The plan also calls for a small clubhouse/leasing office adjacent to Carter Street.

The plan provides architectural standards, and requires that elevations for all buildings be provided with any final site plan. Standards pertain to entry ways, glazing and window orientation, materials and finished ground floor elevations.

Primary access is from Carter Street. The plan also proposes a turn-around at the end of Fannie Williams Street. There would be no vehicular access to the development from Fannie Williams Street, with the exception that it would provide emergency access. The plan calls for surface parking only. No parking is shown along Carter Street. The plan calls for a five foot wide public sidewalk and four foot sidewalk along the frontage of Carter Street and along the proposed turnaround for Fannie Williams Street. The plan provides internal sidewalks throughout the development. The plan also calls for a sidewalk connection to the existing walking path in the adjacent Coleman Park and Community Center.

The SP is consistent with the T4 NE policy and meets several critical planning goals.

# FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION

## Approved with conditions

• Fire Code issues for the structures will be addressed at permit application review.

#### STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION Approved

# PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

#### Approved with conditions

• The developer's final construction drawings shall comply with the design regulations established by the Department of Public Works. Final design may vary based on field conditions.

Comply with MPW Traffic Engineer

• Prior to the Final SP, coordinate with MPW to install additional solid waste and recycling container(s). 3 shown appear to be deficient.

# TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION

# Approved with conditions

• The project access on Carter St. should be constructed to include one entering lane and one exiting lane, striped as a shared left and right turn lane.

• Developer shall provide adequate sight distance at Carter St access drive.

• Consideration should be given to providing a pedestrian connection to Coleman Park, south of the project site.

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Retail (820)	3.5	0.6 F	91, 476 SF	6409	147	600

#### Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: CS

# Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: SP-R

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Multi-Family Residential (220)	3.5	-	92 U	682	49	69

## Traffic changes between maximum: **CS** and **SP-R**

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	-	-5,727	-98	-531

# WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION

Approved with conditions

• Approved as a Preliminary SP only. The required capacity fees must be paid prior to Final Site Plan/SP approval.

## METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

#### Projected student generation existing CS district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High Projected student generation proposed SP-MU district: <u>11</u> Elementary <u>6</u> Middle <u>5</u> High

The proposed SP-MU would generate 22 additional students. Students would attend Whitsitt Elementary School, Wright Middle School and Glencliff High School. There is capacity for additional students in all three schools. This information is based upon data from the school board last updated November 2015.

## STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the request be approved with conditions and disapproved without all conditions as the proposed SP is consistent with the community plan and meets several critical planning goals.

#### CONDITIONS

1. The SP shall be limited to a maximum of 92 residential uses.

2. A sidewalk and public pedestrian easement shall be provided in order to connect Carter Street and Fannie William Street to the proposed greenway that provides access to Coleman Park. Final details for this connection shall be determined with the final site plan.

3. Signage shall meet signage requirements as specified for the RM20-A zoning district.

4. If a development standard, not including permitted uses, is absent from the SP plan and/or Council approval, the property shall be subject to the standards, regulations and requirements of the RM20-A zoning district as of the date of the applicable request or application.

5. The Preliminary SP plan is the site plan and associated documents. If applicable, remove all notes and references that indicate that the site plan is illustrative, conceptual, etc.

6. Add the following note to the plan: The final site plan shall depict a minimum 5 foot clear path of travel for pedestrian ways, including public sidewalks, and the location of all existing and proposed obstructions. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing obstructions within the path of travel shall be relocated to provide a minimum of 5 feet of clear access.

7. The final site plan shall label all internal driveways as "Private Driveways". A note shall be added to the final site plan that the driveways shall be maintained by the Homeowner's Association.

8. A corrected copy of the preliminary SP plan incorporating the conditions of approval by Metro Council shall be provided to the Planning Department prior to or with final site plan application.

9. Minor modifications to the preliminary SP plan may be approved by the Planning Commission or its designee based upon final architectural, engineering or site design and actual site conditions. All modifications shall be consistent with the principles and further the objectives of the approved plan. Modifications shall not be permitted, except through an ordinance approved by Metro Council that increase the permitted density or floor area, add uses not otherwise permitted, eliminate specific conditions or requirements contained in the plan as adopted through this enacting ordinance, or add vehicular access points not currently present or approved.

10. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.

# Approve with conditions and disapprove without all conditions. (8-0), Consent Agenda

# Resolution No. RS2016-31

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016SP-001-001 is **Approved with conditions and disapproved without all conditions. (8-0)**"

#### CONDITIONS

1. The SP shall be limited to a maximum of 92 residential uses.

2. A sidewalk and public pedestrian easement shall be provided in order to connect Carter Street and Fannie William Street to the proposed greenway that provides access to Coleman Park. Final details for this connection shall be determined with the final site plan.

3. Signage shall meet signage requirements as specified for the RM20-A zoning district.

4. If a development standard, not including permitted uses, is absent from the SP plan and/or Council approval, the property shall be subject to the standards, regulations and requirements of the RM20-A zoning district as of the date of the applicable request or application.

5. The Preliminary SP plan is the site plan and associated documents. If applicable, remove all notes and references that indicate that the site plan is illustrative, conceptual, etc.

6. Add the following note to the plan: The final site plan shall depict a minimum 5 foot clear path of travel for pedestrian ways, including public sidewalks, and the location of all existing and proposed obstructions. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing obstructions within the path of travel shall be relocated to provide a minimum of 5 feet of clear access.

7. The final site plan shall label all internal driveways as "Private Driveways". A note shall be added to the final site plan that the driveways shall be maintained by the Homeowner's Association.

8. A corrected copy of the preliminary SP plan incorporating the conditions of approval by Metro Council shall be provided to the Planning Department prior to or with final site plan application.

9. Minor modifications to the preliminary SP plan may be approved by the Planning Commission or its designee based upon final architectural, engineering or site design and actual site conditions. All modifications shall be consistent with the principles and further the objectives of the approved plan. Modifications shall not be permitted, except through an ordinance approved by Metro Council that increase the permitted density or floor area, add uses not otherwise permitted, eliminate specific conditions or requirements contained in the plan as adopted through this enacting ordinance, or add vehicular access points not currently present or approved.

10. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.

# 5. 2016SP-010-001

**1023 PETWAY AVENUE SP** Map 083-01, Parcel(s) 237 Council District 05 (Scott Davis) Staff Reviewer: Lisa Milligan

A request to rezone from RS5 to SP-R zoning for property located at 1023 Petway Avenue, approximately 885 feet west of Gallatin Avenue and located within the Greenwood Neighborhood Conservation Overlay District (0.28 acres), requested by Harold Johnson, applicant and owner.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the February 25, 2016, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2016SP-010-001 to the February 25, 2016, Planning Commission meeting. (8-0)

# Subdivision: Final Plats

# 6. 2015S-174-001

# WELCH PROPERTY SUBDIVISION, SECTION II

Map 104-09, Parcel(s) 140, 143 Council District 24 (Kathleen Murphy) Staff Reviewer: Lisa Milligan

A request for final plat approval to create 27 lots and dedicate easements on property located at 3606 and 3622 West End Avenue, approximately 340 feet east of Craighead Avenue, zoned RS7.5 and RM40 (3.98 acres) and partly located within the Richland-West End Neighborhood Conservation District, requested by Ragan-Smith-Associates, applicant; Mike Ford Custom Builders, LLC, owner.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the February 11, 2016, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2015S-174-001 to the February 11, 2016, Planning Commission meeting. (7-0-1)

# H. COMMUNITY PLAN POLICY CHANGES AND ASSOCIATED CASES

The Planning Commission will make the final decision on a Community Plan Amendment. The Commission will make a recommendation to the Metro Council on any associated cases(s). The Metro Council will make the final decision to approve or disapprove the associated case(s).

# No Cases on this Agenda

# I. RECOMMENDATIONS TO METRO COUNCIL

The Planning Commission will make a recommendation to the Metro Council on the requests below. The Metro Council will make the final decision to approve or disapprove the request.

# **Zoning Text Amendments**

# 7. 2016Z-002TX-001

BL2015-96\Withers Staff Reviewer: Jason Swaggart

A request to amend Section 17.04.060 and 17.08.030 of the Metropolitan Code, Zoning Regulations, by modifying the definition of "Historic home event" to limit events to enclosed areas, requested by Councilman Brett Withers. **Staff Recommendation: Approve.** 

## APPLICANT REQUEST

Amend certain sections of the Metropolitan Zoning Code pertaining to Historic Home Events.

## ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT

A request to amend Section 17.04.060 and 17.08.030 of the Metropolitan Code, Zoning Regulations, by modifying the definition of "Historic home event" to limit events to enclosed areas.

# **CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS**

N/A

## PROPOSED AMENDMENT

The proposed amendment pertains to historic home events. Historic home events are permitted as a Special Exception (SE) in the AG, AR2a, all single-family, two-family, multi-family, mobile home park, office neighborhood (ON) zoning districts. The use is permitted by right within the mixed-use, office with the exception of ON, commercial, DTC and shopping center zoning districts. The requirements for districts where the use is permitted under a SE are as follows:

Historic Home Events.

1. Lot Size. The minimum bulk standard for the zone district shall apply.

2. Location. The events shall be within a historically significant structure, as determined by the historic zoning commission.

3. Parking. Where the minimum parking space standard requires additional parking area to be constructed, such area shall comply with the perimeter parking lot landscaping according to Chapter 17.24 of this code. In urban settings, the board of zoning appeals may consider on-street parking to satisfy the minimum parking standard, provided there is a finding of sufficient available public space.

4. Signs. Signs for advertising shall not be permitted.

5. Meals. Meal service shall be restricted to patrons of the special event only, and not to the general public.

6. Owner-Occupied. The owner of the property must reside permanently in the historic home. Where there is more than one owner of the home, or where an estate, corporation, limited partnership or similar entity is the owner, a person with controlling interest, or possessing the largest number of outstanding shares owned by any single individual or corporation, shall reside permanently in the historic home. If two or more persons own equal shares that represent the largest ownership, at least one of the persons shall reside permanently in the historic home.

7. Frequency of Events. The board of zoning appeals may limit the number and frequency of events to minimize disturbance to surrounding properties.

Currently the use is not restricted within the confines of a home so the event may also take place on the premises outside of a home (yard, porch, deck, etc.). The proposed amendment requires that events take place within the confines of the home and not outside.

The ability to provide historic home events allows historic properties to be preserved when it may not be financially feasible to preserve them with only residential uses. However, the preservation of the historic structures must be balanced with potential disruption to the surrounding neighborhood. The proposed amendment is intended to ensure that these events do not disturb surrounding residents.

## Chapter 17.04 – General Provisions and Definitions

Section 17.04.060 of the Metropolitan Zoning Code specifies the following definition for historic home events:

"Historic home event" means the hosting of events such as, but not limited to, weddings or parties for pay in a private home which has been judged to be historically significant by the historical commission.

## Proposed Amendment

The amendment proposes that the definition for "Historic home events" be amended by further defining where events must take place within a structure that is determined to be "historically significant" by the Historical Commission.

The proposed definition for each use is as follows:

Historic home event" means the hosting of events such as, but not limited to, weddings or parties for pay in a private home which has been judged to be historically significant by the historical commission. The event must be confined to an enclosed area within the private home, limited to the space between a floor and ceiling that is enclosed on all sides by solid walls or windows, exclusive of doorways, which extend from the floor to ceiling.

## STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the proposed text amendment be approved.

# ORDINANCE NO. BL2015-96

An Ordinance amending Section 17.04.060 and 17.08.030 of the Metropolitan Zoning Code by modifying the definition of "Historic home event" to limit events to enclosed areas (Proposal No. 2016Z-002TX-001).

WHEREAS, the definition of "Historic home event" in Section 17.04.060 of the Metropolitan Code refers to the hosting of events "in a private home", with no further clarification regarding where such events may be conducted; and

WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper that the definition of "Historic home event" be amended to clarify the proper location for Historic home events.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Section 1. That Title 17 of the Code of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Zoning Regulations, is hereby amended by amending Section 17.04.060, Definitions of General Terms, by deleting the definition of "Historic home event", and substituting with the following new definition:

"Historic home event" means the hosting of events such as, but not limited to, weddings or parties for pay in a private home which has been judged to be historically significant by the historical commission. The event must be confined to an enclosed area within the private home, limited to the space between a floor and ceiling that is enclosed on all sides by solid walls or windows, exclusive of doorways, which extend from the floor to ceiling.

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately after its passage and such change be published in a newspaper of general circulation, the welfare of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County requiring it. Sponsored by: Brett Withers

Mr. Swaggart presented the staff recommendation of approval.

Councilman Withers spoke in favor of the application and asked for approval. While we welcome our historic home events and bed and breakfasts that have gone through processes that have been in place for a long time, at some point there is an effect on the residential character of the neighborhood.

Jamie Hollin spoke in favor of the application.

Carol Williams, 800 Russell Street, spoke in favor of the application as clarification is needed to prevent inconsistent rulings from the Board of Zoning Appeals.

Michael Kreyling, 1201 Holly Street, spoke in favor of the application as clarification is needed.

Tom White, 315 Deaderick Street, spoke in opposition to the application and stated there should be a condition that this text amendment will only affect new properties and not those allowed by special exception of the BZA.

Ed Clay, 209 S 5<sup>th</sup> Street, spoke in opposition to the application and requested that all current historic home event venues are grandfathered in.

Coby Sherlock, 209 S 5<sup>th</sup> Street, spoke in opposition to the application and asked that all current historic home event venues are grandfathered in.

Jessica (last name unclear), 430 Burgess Drive, spoke in opposition to the application on behalf of a current bride-to-be scheduled for a September wedding at the East Ivy Mansion.

Jamie Lane, 5613 Valley View Road, spoke in opposition to the application because it would shut down East Ivy Mansion.

John Yates, 139 N Timber Drive, spoke in opposition to the application and noted a great venue would be hindered by this bill.

Debbie Cogswell, 1416 Eastland Avenue, spoke in opposition to the application as a mother of a groom.

Robert Higgenbotham, 865 Bellevue Road, spoke in opposition to the application because he'd like to see Nashville grow as a destination wedding location.

Nathan Wright, spoke in opposition to the application as thousands of people come to Nashville each year for weddings; please grandfather in existing venues.

Karen Wright, 3831 Whites Creek Pike, spoke in opposition to the application.

Hailey Weber, 2828 Bronte Ave, spoke in opposition to the application and noted that Nashville can't afford to lose out on the wedding industry; please grandfather in existing venues.

Sunny Becks, 1515 Forrest Avenue, spoke in opposition to the application and asked the commission to please keep Nashville awesome.

Micah Robinson, 270 Tampa Drive, spoke in opposition to the application.

Danielle Worley, 803 Woodland Street, spoke in opposition to the application and asked that current venues be grandfathered in.

Nathan Weinberg, 3944 Moss Rose Drive, spoke in opposition to the application.

Debra Sutton, 1833 Welcome Lane, spoke in opposition to the application.

Council Lady VanReece expressed respect for Councilman Withers and his intent but noted there are future opportunities for historic homes and events of this nature. This would affect the entire county and we don't want to stifle any potential future opportunities.

Scott Barker, 3804 Williamette Drive, spoke in opposition to the application; please grandfather in existing venues.

Bo Jennings, 204 Cude Lane, spoke in opposition to the application as jobs and brides will be greatly affected.

Councilman Withers asked for approval.

#### Chairman McLean closed the Public Hearing.

Ms. Hagan-Dier spoke in opposition as the language of the bill is over broad.

Ms. Farr noted preserving not just the homes but the surrounding properties is equally important. There does need to be some clarification but taking the grounds away from the home and trying to keep everything within that one residential structure would really do a disservice, especially if it is county wide.

Mr. Adkins spoke in opposition as the language of the bill is over broad. It would be better to regulate the amplification of the music or the parking issues and not change the entire ordinance.

Mr. Clifton explained the councilman has brought attention to a very real problem as some of our historic neighborhoods have come under danger of being overwhelmed not just by noise, but by erosion of basic neighborhood uses. It was interesting to hear from Council Lady VanReece that there might be places that this particular land use would be useful but we have a mechanism for that called rezoning.

Ms. Blackshear stated there certainly is a reason for the bill because there seems to be discrepancy as to the disruption of these event spaces. It also doesn't seem that all historic home property owners knew about this bill. She spoke in opposition to the bill as written.

Mr. Gee stated that he is not prepared to vote for this as written. There are other ways that will actually address the problems of noise, lighting, etc.

Council Lady Allen agreed that this is a very broad approach and not necessarily appropriate for some of these homes.

Councilman Withers stated that he would love the opportunity to continue discussing this and solve these problems in a meaningful way.

# Mr. Adkins moved and Ms. Blackshear seconded the motion to disapprove. (7-1) Mr. Clifton voted against.

# Resolution No. RS2016-32

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016Z-002TX-001 is **Disapproved. (7-1)**"

# 8. 2016Z-003TX-001

BL2016-117\Syracuse Staff Reviewer: Brandon Burnette

A request to amend Section 17.04 and 17.08 of the Metropolitan Code, Zoning Regulations, to designate flex loan and installment loans as uses permitted with conditions and adding conditions applicable to these uses, requested by Councilman Jeff Syracuse.

# Staff Recommendation: Approve.

#### APPLICANT REQUEST

Amend Chapters 17.04 and 17.08 of the Metropolitan Code, Zoning Regulations, pertaining to flex and installment Loans.

#### ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT

A request to amend Chapters 17.04 and 17.08 of the Metropolitan Code, Zoning Regulations, designating flex loan and installment loan as uses permitted with conditions and adding conditions applicable to these uses.

#### **CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS**

N/A

#### PROPOSED AMENDMENT

The proposed amendment would make changes to Sections 17.04, 17.08 and 17.16 of the Zoning Code. The Metro Zoning Code currently has definitions for other alternative financial service uses including cash advance, check cashing, pawnshop and title loan establishments, all of which are defined separately from a Financial Institution use. In addition, Section 17.16 provides land use development standards for these uses.

The Zoning Code does not currently include flex and installment loan uses in the permitted use table, nor is there a definition for either use, and the Zoning Administrator would currently classify each use as cash advance. This amendment proposes to establish Flex and Installment Loan uses and provides a definition and land use development standards for each use. The proposed land use development standards for each use are the same as currently exist within the Metro Zoning Code for other alternative financial services uses. This amendment also proposes to amend the definition of a financial institution use by adding that flex loan and installment loan uses are excluded from the definition of a financial institution, which already excludes other alternative services uses from that definition.

#### Chapter 17.04 – General Provisions and Definitions

Section 17.04.060 of the Metropolitan Zoning Code specifies the following definition for financial institution uses:

"Financial institution" means any building, room, space or portion thereof where an establishment provides a variety of financial services, including generally, banks, credit unions, and mortgage companies, but excluding cash advance, check cashing, and title loan establishments.

The amendment proposes that the definition for financial institution located in Chapter 17.04 of the Metro Zoning Code be amended by deleting "but excluding cash advance, check cashing, and title loan establishments.", and replacing it with "but excluding cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan and installment loan establishments."

Definitions for "flex loan" and "installment loan" uses are to be added to Chapter 17.04 as well. The proposed definition for each use is as follows:

"Flex loan" means any building, room, space or portion thereof where a written agreement providing open-end credit, either unsecured or secured by personal property, in which repeated non-commercial loans for personal, family or household purposes is contemplated, as regulated by Title 45, Chapter 12, of the Tennessee Code Annotated.

"Installment loan" means any building, room, space or portion thereof where a loan is repaid over time with a set number of scheduled payments to a financial institution.

## Chapter 17.08 – Zoning Districts and Land Uses

Section 17.08.030, District bulk table, contains the Land Use Table. This table specifies which uses are permitted in each zoning district found within Davidson County.

The amendment proposes that "flex loan" and "installment loan" be added to the list of uses in the table. The amendment further proposes that the table show that both uses are permitted with conditions (PC) within the MUN, MUN-A, MUL, MUL-A, MUG, MUG-A, MUI, MUI-A, ON, OL, OG, OR20, OR20-A, OR40, OR40-A, ORI, ORI-A, CN, CN-A, CL, CL-A, CS, CS-A, CA, CF, SCN, SCC, SCR and IWD zoning districts.

## Chapter 17.16 – Land Use Development Standards

Chapter 17.16.050 – Office uses, specifies conditions for certain uses that are permitted with conditions. The amendment proposes to add "flex loan" and "installment loan" to Section 17.16.050.D, which currently includes conditions for existing Alternative Financial Services uses:

"D. Cash Advance, Check Cashing, Title Loan, Flex Loan and Installment Loan.

1. No cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan or installment loan establishment shall be located less than one thousand three hundred twenty (1,320) linear feet from the property line of another property upon which another cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan or installment loan office is located.

2. Cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan or installment loan offices in the MUN, MUN-A, ON, and CN zoning districts shall be limited to two thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet of gross floor area per establishment."

## ANALYSIS

Staff recommends that the proposed text amendment be approved. The proposed text amendment creates additional alternative financial services uses and permits said uses with the same conditions and within the same base zoning districts in which existing alternative financial services uses are currently permitted with conditions. Research has shown that a concentration of alternative financial services uses is present along major thoroughfares in Nashville. A study prepared by the Regional Planning Agency of Chattanooga and Hamilton County found that a concentration of these uses may have a negative impact on the appreciation of nearby properties. Another study by the St. Louis County Planning Department found that communities perceive areas with a high concentration of alternative financial services uses have shown that alternative financial services uses may have on the surrounding community, staff finds that providing conditions applicable to the uses is appropriate.

# CODES RECOMMENDATION Approve.

# STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the proposed text amendment be approved.

# ORDINANCE NO. BL2016-117

An Ordinance amending Chapters 17.04 and 17.08 of the Metropolitan Zoning Code to designate flex loan and installment loan as uses permitted with conditions and adding conditions applicable to these uses (Proposal No. 2016Z-003TX-001).

WHEREAS, a study conducted by the Regional Planning Agency of Chattanooga-Hamilton County, Tennessee concluded that the proliferation and clustering of "Alternative Financial Services" such as cash advance, check cashing, pawnshops, and title loan establishments can have a detrimental effect on local property values and economic redevelopment; and

WHEREAS, the study noted that efforts to promote economic revitalization through diversification of land uses in certain areas may be impeded by the clustering of certain alternative financial services; and

WHEREAS, a 2009 examination of the locations of alternative financial service providers by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System provides evidence that these businesses tend to locate in areas where the population is disproportionately minority and poorly educated; and

WHEREAS, in the last decade, many cities have created zoning ordinances designed to limit the concentration of alternative financial services (AFS) businesses such as check-cashing outlets, money transmitters, car title lenders, payday loan stores, pawnshops, and rent-to-own stores; and

WHEREAS, AFS businesses have been expanding at a rapid rate, and the abundance of payday lenders in certain communities may be the result of a void left by banks and credit unions that have departed from middle- and low-income neighborhoods.

WHEREAS, the fees and lending practices used by alternative financial service establishments can have a significant negative effect on a city's residents {Source: Baylor, Don; "The Hidden Costs of Payday Lending," Texas Business Review, April 2008}; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the high fees associated with using AFS services, consumers become enmeshed in a cycle of debt and dependency from which it is difficult to emerge.

WHEREAS, Tennessee is among 27 states that have permissive regulations for payday establishments that have an Annual Percentage Rate (APR) of 391% or higher. Tennessee's rate is 459%. Under Tennessee law, a payday lender can charge \$15 per returned check, or \$17.65 for every \$100 loaned to the borrower; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 45, Chapter 12 of Tennessee Code Annotated, certain rules and regulations governing financial institutions have been established which regulate flexible credit lenders and which became effective on January 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, as a result of this new TCA legislation, there are additional types of alternative finance lenders (flexible credit loans) that are not currently identified in the zoning code, but have a similar impact as the alternative financial services noted in the RPA study; and

WHEREAS, on March 26, 2015, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) -- a federal agency -- announced its consideration of rules proposed to end payday debt traps by requiring lenders to take steps to ensure that consumers can repay their loans. However, it is anticipated that implementation of any such new regulations will be months if not years away; and

WHEREAS, cities have authority to regulate the location and operation of AFS businesses within their boundaries, particularly in the aftermath of the U.S. Supreme Court decision in Village of Euclid, Ohio v. Ambler Realty Co. which established the general principle that zoning restrictions can legitimately be designed to protect public safety, health, and welfare of residents, specifically allowing the exclusion, separation, or limitation of particular types of land uses deemed harmful in some way to the local community; and

WHEREAS, other Tennessee cities, including Chattanooga and Memphis, have addressed AFS businesses by enacting minimum distance requirements from each other; and whereas on December 9, 2014, the Knoxville City Council approved resolution R-428-2014 titled "A Resolution of the Council of the City of Knoxville respectfully requesting that the Metropolitan Planning Commission consider and make a recommendation to City Council regarding the possible limitation of alternative financial establishments to the zoning regulation definitions and to potentially regulating the clustering of same"; and

WHEREAS, as shown on Exhibits A and B attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance, Nashville, Tennessee has a high concentration of alternative financial service establishments along the major thoroughfares in the city; and

WHEREAS, in order to protect local property values and economic redevelopment in Nashville, Tennessee, the Metropolitan Council deems it to be in the best interest of the residents of the city that the proliferation and clustering of alternative financial services be further regulated through the Metropolitan Zoning Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY:

Section 1. That Section 17.04.060 of Title 17 of the Code of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Zoning Regulations, is hereby amended by adding the following terms and definitions:

"Flex loan" means any building, room, space or portion thereof where a written agreement providing open-end credit, either unsecured or secured by personal property, in which repeated non-commercial loans for personal, family or household purposes is contemplated, as regulated by Title 45, Chapter 12, of the Tennessee Code Annotated.

"Installment loan" means any building, room, space or portion thereof where a loan is repaid over time with a set number of scheduled payments to a financial institution.

Section 2. That Section 17.04.060 of Title 17 of the Code of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Zoning Regulations, is hereby amended by deleting the final provision at the end of the definition of "financial institution" which currently reads:

"but excluding cash advance, check cashing, and title loan establishments." and replacing it with the following: "but excluding cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan and installment loan establishments."

Section 3. That Section 17.08.030, District Land Use Tables, is hereby amended by designating "flex loan" and "installment loan" as uses permitted with conditions (PC) in zoning districts MUN, MUN-A, MUL, MUL-A, MUG, MUG-A, MUI, MUI-A, ON, OL, OG, OR20, OR20-A, OR40, OR40-A, ORI, ORI-A, CN, CN-A, CL, CL-A, CS, CS-A, CA, CF, SCN, SCC, SCR and IWD.

Section 4. That Section 17.16.050, Office Uses, is hereby amended as follows:

1. By deleting subsection D. in its entirety and substituting with the following new subsection D.:

"D. Cash Advance, Check Cashing, Title Loan, Flex Loan and Installment Loan.

1. No cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan or installment loan establishment shall be located less than one thousand three hundred twenty (1,320) linear feet from the property line of another property upon which another cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan or installment loan office is located.

2. Cash advance, check cashing, title loan, flex loan or installment loan offices in the MUN, MUN-A, ON, and CN zoning districts shall be limited to two thousand five hundred (2,500) square feet of gross floor area per establishment."

Section 5. If any provision of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Ordinance.

Section 6. Be it further enacted that this Ordinance shall take effect immediately after its passage and such change be published in a newspaper of general circulation, the welfare of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County requiring it.

Sponsored by: Jeff Syracuse, Mike Freeman, Fabian Bedne, Colby Sledge

Approve. (8-0), Consent Agenda

# Resolution No. RS2016-33

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016Z-003TX-001 is Approved. (8-0)"

# Specific Plans

# 9. 2016SP-016-001

OAKWOOD AVENUE SP Map 072, Parcel(s) 002, 021, 023, 024, 026 Council District 05 (Scott Davis) Staff Reviewer: Alex Deus

A request to rezone from IR to SP-MU zoning for properties located at 2034 and 2037 Pittway Drive and Oakwood Avenue (unnumbered), approximately 1, 400 feet north of East Trinity Land (20.61 acres), to permit a mixed-use development, requested by Dale & Associates, applicant; Robert and Patricia Johnson, owners. **Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions and disapprove without all conditions.** 

#### APPLICANT REQUEST Rezone from IR to SP-MU.

#### Zone Change

A request to rezone from Industrial Restrictive (IR) to Specific Plan-Mixed Use (SP-MU) zoning for properties located at 2034 and 2037 Pittway Drive and Oakwood Avenue (unnumbered), approximately 1, 400 feet north of East Trinity Land (20.61 acres), to permit a mixed-use development.

#### **Existing Zoning**

Industrial Restrictive (IR) is intended for a wide range of light manufacturing uses at moderate intensities within enclosed structures.

#### Proposed Zoning

<u>Specific Plan-Mixed Use (SP-MU)</u> is a zoning district category that provides for additional flexibility of design, including the relationship of streets to buildings, to provide the ability to implement the specific details of the General Plan. This Specific Plan includes residential uses in addition to office and/or commercial uses.

#### CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS

- Creates Walkable Neighborhoods
- Supports Infill Development

This request directs development to areas where infrastructure is already existing (i.e. sewer lines, roads) as opposed to areas where there are not adequate public facilities. This reduces the service constraints placed on Metro's resources. The proposed request would also enhance walkability along a corridor through the orientation of buildings and enhancement of the pedestrian network.

# EAST NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>District Employment Center (D EC)</u> is intended to preserve, create, and enhance concentrations of employment that are often in a campus-like setting. A mixture of office, commercial, and even light industrial uses are present, but are not necessarily vertically mixed. Complementary uses are also present and are encouraged as secondary and supportive to the primary function of D Employment Center areas as places of intense economic activity featuring large numbers of jobs. Daily convenience retail, restaurants, and services for the employees and medium to high density residential are appropriate secondary and supportive uses within the D Employment Center Area.

These uses may also be found in mixed use areas close to the D Employment Center area. In general, secondary and supportive uses do not occupy more than about quarter of the land in any given D Employment Center area in order to protect its primary function of providing intense concentrations of jobs.

<u>Conservation (CO)</u> is intended to preserve and enhance environmentally sensitive land in all Transect Categories except T1 Natural, T5 Center, and T6 Downtown. CO policy identifies land with sensitive environmental features including, but not limited to, steep slopes, floodway/floodplains, rare or special plant or animal habitats, wetlands and unstable or problem soils. The guidance for preserving or enhancing these features varies with what Transect they area in and whether or not they have already been disturbed.

#### Consistent with Policy?

Yes. Generally, this policy allows for concentrations of employment through a mixture of office and commercial uses. In order to create the necessary conditions to achieve the intent of the policy, a condition has been included that would require that at least 60% of the total floor area shall be used for non- residential uses.

Furthermore, residential uses would be allowed in order to create an appropriate transition between this site and the adjacent residential neighborhoods. The guidance within the policy requires that buildings at the edge of the District Employment Center step down in order to create an appropriate transition to the surrounding lower-intense neighborhoods. A condition has been included that limits height along Oakwood Avenue and the northern property line to two stories and 35 feet. Non- residential uses would be prohibited fronting Oakwood Avenue. These requirements would facilitate an appropriate transition.

There is a small portion of the site located on the northern property line that is located within the Conservation policy due to slopes. The presence of a TVA easement and the requirement of a landscape buffer yard will preserve this environmental feature.

#### ANALYSIS

These properties are located at 2034 and 2037 Pittway Drive and Oakwood Avenue (unnumbered) on approximately 20.61 acres. The site is currently zoned IR which permits light industrial uses, and are currently vacant with the exception of a small warehouse found on the southern portion of the site.

If these properties were to redevelop under the proposed SP, there would be design standards in place that would be sensitive to the adjacent residential neighborhoods. Uses permitted would be those found under the MUG-A district, which allow for office, commercial, and residential. These uses are considered appropriate land uses under the policy. There would be a requirement that at least 60% of the total floor area shall be used for non- residential uses in order to spur concentrations of employment.

Height would be limited to two stories and 35 feet along the northern property line and Oakwood Avenue; no structure could exceed five stories. As mentioned, this step down would create an appropriate transition to the surrounding neighborhoods and would be in keeping with policy which requires a step down in height as development moves closer to lower-intensity uses. There would also be a landscape buffer yard 'D' required along the northern property line.

This SP would enhance the pedestrian network and activate the public realm as it would require sidewalks along Oakwood Avenue to be improved with a 5' planting strip and a 6' sidewalk. Building facades fronting a street shall provide a direct pedestrian entrance for a minimum of 50% of ground floor units and have 25% glazing requirements. Vehicular access would be limited to two access points along Oakwood Avenue which would limit the disruption to the public realm.

# FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION N/A

WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION Ignore

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

# TRAFFIC & PARKING RECOMMENDATION Conditions if approved.

• Traffic study may be required at time of development.

# Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: IR

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Warehousing (150)	20.61	0.6 F	538, 662 SF	1918	162	173

# Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: SP-MU

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Retail (820)	20.61	3.0 F	2, 693, 314 SF	+57760	+1076	+5780

# Traffic changes between maximum: IR and SP-MU

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	-	+55,842	+914	+5,607

## METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT

Projected student generation existing IR district	0 Elementary	<u>0</u> Middle	<u>0</u> High
Projected student generation proposed <u>SP-MU</u> district	<u>8</u> Elementary	<u>6</u> Middle	<u>13</u> High

The proposed SP-MU district would generate 27 more students than what is typically generated under the existing IR district using the urban infill factor. Student would attend Tom Joy Elementary, Jere Baxter Middle School and Maplewood High School.

The information is based upon date from the school last updated November 2015.

# STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions and disapproval without all conditions.

# CONDITIONS

1. Uses within this SP shall be limited to those permitted under the MUG-A zoning district.

2. Height is limited to two stories and 35 feet along the northern property boundary and along Oakwood Avenue. No structure can exceed five stories.

3. At least 60% of the total floor area shall be used for non- residential uses.

4. Non- residential uses shall be prohibited fronting Oakwood Avenue.

5. A standard class 'D' landscape buffer yard is required along the entire northern property line.

6. Sidewalks on Oakwood Avenue are required to be improved with a 5' planting strip and a 6' sidewalk.

7. Along Oakwood Avenue vehicular access is limited to two access points.

8. Building façades fronting a street shall provide direct pedestrian entrances for a minimum of 50% of the ground floor units along each street frontage and a minimum of 25% glazing.

9. Windows shall be vertically oriented at a ratio of 1.5:1 or greater, except for dormers or egress windows.

10. EIFS, vinyl siding and untreated wood shall be prohibited.

11. A raised foundation of 18"-36" is required along all public streets.

12. Add the following note to the plan: The final site plan shall depict a minimum 5 foot clear path of travel for pedestrian ways, including public sidewalks, and the location of all existing and proposed obstructions. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing obstructions within the path of travel shall be relocated to provide a minimum of 5 feet of clear access.

13. If a development standard, not including permitted uses, is absent from the SP plan and/or Council approval, the property shall be subject to the standards, regulations and requirements of the MUG-A zoning district as of the date of the applicable request or application.

14. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.

Mr. Deus presented the staff recommendation of approval with conditions and disapproval without all conditions.

Councilmember Scott Davis spoke in favor of the application and promised to hold another community meeting.

Council Lady VanReece spoke in favor of the application.

Roy Dale, 516 Heather Place, spoke in favor of the application and promised to have another community meeting before council public hearing.

Tara (last name unclear), 2401 Cairo Bend Road, spoke in favor of the application.

Terri Robertson, 2573 Slayden Drive, spoke in opposition to the application as we just recently received this information and have not had an opportunity to understand what the proposals are.

Brenda Mitchell-Hunt, 2112 Oakwood Avenue, spoke in opposition to the application because the neighbors are not informed enough about what is going on.

Roy Dale asked for approval.

## Chairman McLean closed the Public Hearing.

Councilman Davis promised to coordinate with Council Lady VanReece to schedule another community meeting.

Council Lady Allen spoke in favor and noted there is plenty of time for the councilman to hold an additional meeting before this goes to council.

Mr. Gee spoke in favor of the application as it meets policy and conditions have been put in place to protect the neighborhood.

Ms. Blackshear noted discomfort with approving something that hasn't been formulated with as much information as it should have been.

Mr. Clifton spoke in favor of the application but noted it is a matter of best practices to have the best possible hearing out in the neighborhood.

Councilman Davis noted this can be amended at council.

Mr. Adkins spoke in favor of the application and noted it seems like the right fit from a planning perspective.

Ms. Farr spoke in favor of the application as it meets policy.

# Mr. Clifton moved and Mr. Adkins seconded the motion to approve with conditions and disapprove without all conditions. (7-1) Ms. Blackshear voted against.

# Resolution No. RS2016-34

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016SP-016-001 is **Approved with conditions and disapproved without all conditions. (7-1)**"

# CONDITIONS

1. Uses within this SP shall be limited to those permitted under the MUG-A zoning district.

2. Height is limited to two stories and 35 feet along the northern property boundary and along Oakwood Avenue. No structure can exceed five stories.

3. At least 60% of the total floor area shall be used for non- residential uses.

4. Non- residential uses shall be prohibited fronting Oakwood Avenue.

5. A standard class 'D' landscape buffer yard is required along the entire northern property line.

6. Sidewalks on Oakwood Avenue are required to be improved with a 5' planting strip and a 6' sidewalk.

7. Along Oakwood Avenue vehicular access is limited to two access points.

8. Building façades fronting a street shall provide direct pedestrian entrances for a minimum of 50% of the ground floor units along each street frontage and a minimum of 25% glazing.

9. Windows shall be vertically oriented at a ratio of 1.5:1 or greater, except for dormers or egress windows.

10. EIFS, vinyl siding and untreated wood shall be prohibited.

11. A raised foundation of 18"-36" is required along all public streets.

12. Add the following note to the plan: The final site plan shall depict a minimum 5 foot clear path of travel for pedestrian ways, including public sidewalks, and the location of all existing and proposed obstructions. Prior to the issuance of use and occupancy permits, existing obstructions within the path of travel shall be relocated to provide a minimum of 5 feet of clear access.

13. If a development standard, not including permitted uses, is absent from the SP plan and/or Council approval, the property shall be subject to the standards, regulations and requirements of the MUG-A zoning district as of the date of the applicable request or application.

14. The requirements of the Metro Fire Marshal's Office for emergency vehicle access and adequate water supply for fire protection must be met prior to the issuance of any building permits.

# Zone Changes

# 10. 2016Z-007PR-001

Map 132-01, Parcel(s) 028-029 Council District 25 (Russ Pulley) Staff Reviewer: Latisha Birkeland

A request to rezone from RS20 to R20 zoning for properties located at 4101 and 4105 Lealand Lane, approximately 130 feet North of Lealand Court (2.58 acres), requested by Build Nashville DB2, applicant; H.V. McCracken, Nancy Merrit and T.C. Simmons and Jimmi and J. Vaughan, owners.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the February 25, 2016, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2016Z-007PR-001 to the February 25, 2016, Planning Commission meeting. (8-0)

# 11. 2016Z-010PR-001

BL2016-112\Withers Various Maps, Various Parcel(s) Council District 06 (Brett Withers); 07 (Anthony Davis) Staff Reviewer: Lisa Milligan

A request to apply the provisions of the Contextual Overlay District to various properties located along Highview Drive and Lethia Drive (20.47 acres), requested by Councilmember Brett Withers and Councilmember Anthony Davis, applicants; various property owners.

Staff Recommendation: Approve.

# APPLICANT REQUEST

Apply a Contextual Overlay District.

#### Zone Change

A request to apply the provisions of the Contextual Overlay District to various properties located along Highview Drive and Lethia Drive (20.47 acres).

# Existing Zoning

<u>One and Two-Family Residential (R10)</u> requires a minimum 10,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 4.63 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots.

# Proposed Zoning

<u>Contextual Overlay</u> provides appropriate design standards for residential areas necessary to maintain and reinforce an established form or character of residential development in a particular area.

# CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS

# EAST NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>T3 Suburban Neighborhood Maintenance (T3 NM)</u> is intended to preserve the general character of developed suburban residential neighborhoods. T3 NM areas will experience some change over time, primarily when buildings are expanded or replaced. When this occurs, efforts should be made to retain the existing character of the neighborhood. T3 NM areas have an established development pattern consisting of low to moderate density residential development and institutional land uses. Enhancements may be made to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

<u>Conservation (CO)</u> is intended to preserve environmentally sensitive land features through protection and remediation. CO policy applies in all Transect Categories except T1 Natural, T5 Center, and T6 Downtown. CO policy identifies land with sensitive environmental features including, but not limited to, steep slopes, floodway/floodplains, rare or special plant or animal habitats, wetlands and unstable or problem soils. The guidance for preserving or enhancing these features varies with what Transect they are in and whether or not they have already been disturbed.

# Consistent with Policy?

Yes. The proposed Contextual Overlay is consistent with the policy. The Contextual Overlay would help to preserve the general character of the existing neighborhood with specific standards for new construction that are directly related to the existing residential structures in the area.

## ANALYSIS

The Contextual Overlay District provides appropriate design standards for residential areas necessary to maintain and reinforce an established form or character of residential development in a particular area.

The design standards established through the Contextual Overlay include specific standards in regards to street setback, building height, building coverage, access, driveways, garages, and parking areas. Street setbacks, building height, and building coverage are directly tied to the lots abutting on either side of a lot proposed for new construction. Access, driveway, garage and parking design standards are intended to help control new accesses on the public streets as well as the location of garages and parking to lessen the impact of new construction on existing homes. The design standards are already established and cannot be modified.

## CONTEXTUAL OVERLAY STANDARDS

A. Street setback. The minimum required street setback shall be the average of the street setback of the two developed lots abutting each side of the lot. When one or more of the abutting lots is vacant, the next developed lot on the same block face shall be used. The minimum provided in 17.12.030A and the maximum provided in 17.12.030C.3 shall not apply. Where there is only one abutting lot on the same block face, it shall be used for this calculation. When the subject lot is on a corner, the minimum required street setback shall be calculated and met for each street. B. Height.

1. The maximum height, including the foundation, of any primary structure shall not be greater than 35 feet or 125% of the average height of the principal structures on the two lots abutting each side of the lot, whichever is less. When one of the abutting lots is vacant, the next developed lot on the same block face shall be used. Where there is only one abutting lot on the same block face, it shall be used for this calculation. When the subject lot is on a corner, the maximum height shall be calculated for each street and limited to 35 feet or 125% of the average height of the lesser value. When 125% of the average of the abutting structures is less than 27 feet, a maximum height of 1.5 stories in 27 feet shall be permitted.

2. The maximum height, including the foundation, of any accessory structure shall not be greater than 27 feet.

3. For the purposes of this section, height shall be measured from grade or, if present, the top of a foundation which shall not exceed three feet above grade, to the roof line.

C. Maximum building coverage. The maximum building coverage (excluding detached garages and other accessory buildings) shall be a maximum of 150% of the average of the building coverage (excluding detached garages and other accessory buildings) of the two abutting lots on each side. When the abutting lot is vacant, the next developed lot shall be used. Where there is only one abutting lot on the same block face, it shall be used for this calculation. When the subject lot is on a corner, the maximum building coverage shall be calculated and met for each street.

D. Access and driveways, garages and parking areas.

1. Access and Driveways.

a. Where existing, access shall be from an improved alley. Where no improved alley exists, a driveway within the street setback may be permitted.

b. For a corner lot, the driveway shall be located within 30 feet of the rear property line.

c. Driveways are limited to one driveway ramp per public street frontage.

d. Parking, driveways and all other impervious surfaces in the required street setback shall not exceed twelve feet in width. 2. Garages.

a. Detached. The front of any detached garage shall be located behind the rear of the primary structure. The garage door of a detached garage may face the street.

b. Attached. The garage door shall face the side or rear property line

#### STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval as the establishment of a contextual overlay is consistent with the policy for the area.

Approve. (8-0), Consent Agenda

# Resolution No. RS2016-35

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016Z-010PR-001 is Approved. (8-0)"

# 12. 2016Z-011PR-001

BL2016-113\Withers Various Maps, Various Parcel(s) Council District 06 (Brett Withers) Staff Reviewer: Lisa Milligan

A request to apply the provisions of the Contextual Overlay District to various properties located along Barclay Drive, Fortland Drive, Hody Drive, Huntleigh Drive, Noonan Court, Noonan Drive, Paden Drive, and Riverside Drive (71.28 acres), requested by Councilmember Brett Withers, applicant; various property owners. **Staff Recommendation: Approve.** 

#### APPLICANT REQUEST Apply a Contextual Overlay District.

## Zone Change

A request to apply the provisions of the Contextual Overlay District to various properties located along Barclay Drive, Fortland Drive, Hody Drive, Huntleigh Drive, Noonan Court, Noonan Drive, Paden Drive, and Riverside Drive (71.28 acres).

# Existing Zoning

<u>One and Two-Family Residential (R10)</u> requires a minimum 10,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 4.63 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots.

## Proposed Zoning

<u>Contextual Overlay</u> provides appropriate design standards for residential areas necessary to maintain and reinforce an established form or character of residential development in a particular area.

# **CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS**

N/A

## EAST NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>T3 Suburban Neighborhood Maintenance</u> is intended to preserve the general character of developed suburban residential neighborhoods. T3 NM areas will experience some change over time, primarily when buildings are expanded or replaced. When this occurs, efforts should be made to retain the existing character of the neighborhood. T3 NM areas have an established development pattern consisting of low to moderate density residential development and institutional land uses. Enhancements may be made to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

<u>Conservation (CO)</u> is intended to preserve environmentally sensitive land features through protection and remediation. CO policy applies in all Transect Categories except T1 Natural, T5 Center, and T6 Downtown. CO policy identifies land with sensitive environmental features including, but not limited to, steep slopes, floodway/floodplains, rare or special plant or animal habitats, wetlands and unstable or problem soils. The guidance for preserving or enhancing these features varies with what Transect they are in and whether or not they have already been disturbed.

#### Consistent with Policy?

Yes. The proposed Contextual Overlay is consistent with the policy. The Contextual Overlay would help to preserve the general character of the existing neighborhood with specific standards for new construction that are directly related to the existing residential structures in the area.

# ANALYSIS

The Contextual Overlay District provides appropriate design standards for residential areas necessary to maintain and reinforce an established form or character of residential development in a particular area.

The design standards established through the Contextual Overlay include specific standards in regards to street setback, building height, building coverage, access, driveways, garages, and parking areas. Street setbacks, building height, and building coverage are directly tied to the lots abutting on either side of a lot proposed for new construction. Access, driveway, garage and parking design standards are intended to help control new accesses on the public streets as well as the location of garages and parking to lessen the impact of new construction on existing homes. The design standards are already established and cannot be modified.

# CONTEXTUAL OVERLAY STANDARDS

A. Street setback. The minimum required street setback shall be the average of the street setback of the two developed lots abutting each side of the lot. When one or more of the abutting lots is vacant, the next developed lot on the same block face shall be used. The minimum provided in 17.12.030A and the maximum provided in 17.12.030C.3 shall not apply. Where there is only one abutting lot on the same block face, it shall be used for this calculation. When the subject lot is on a corner, the minimum required street setback shall be calculated and met for each street.

B. Height.

1. The maximum height, including the foundation, of any primary structure shall not be greater than 35 feet or 125% of the average height of the principal structures on the two lots abutting each side of the lot, whichever is less. When one of the abutting lots is vacant, the next developed lot on the same block face shall be used. Where there is only one abutting lot on the same block face, it shall be used for this calculation. When the subject lot is on a corner, the maximum height shall be calculated for each street and limited to 35 feet or 125% of the average height of the lesser value. When 125% of the average of the abutting structures is less than 27 feet, a maximum height of 1.5 stories in 27 feet shall be permitted.

2. The maximum height, including the foundation, of any accessory structure shall not be greater than 27 feet.

3. For the purposes of this section, height shall be measured from grade or, if present, the top of a foundation which shall not exceed three feet above grade, to the roof line.

C. Maximum building coverage. The maximum building coverage (excluding detached garages and other accessory buildings) shall be a maximum of 150% of the average of the building coverage (excluding detached garages and other accessory buildings) of the two abutting lots on each side. When the abutting lot is vacant, the next developed lot shall be used. Where there is only one abutting lot on the same block face, it shall be used for this calculation. When the subject lot is on a corner, the maximum building coverage shall be calculated and met for each street.

D. Access and driveways, garages and parking areas.

1. Access and Driveways.

a. Where existing, access shall be from an improved alley. Where no improved alley exists, a driveway within the street setback may be permitted.

b. For a corner lot, the driveway shall be located within 30 feet of the rear property line.

c. Driveways are limited to one driveway ramp per public street frontage.

d. Parking, driveways and all other impervious surfaces in the required street setback shall not exceed twelve feet in width. 2. Garages.

a. Detached. The front of any detached garage shall be located behind the rear of the primary structure. The garage door of a detached garage may face the street.

b. Attached. The garage door shall face the side or rear property line

#### STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval as the establishment of a contextual overlay is consistent with the policy for the area.

Approve. (8-0), Consent Agenda

# Resolution No. RS2016-36

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016Z-011PR-001 is Approved. (8-0)"

# 13. 2016Z-012PR-001

Map 071-12, Parcel(s) 237 Council District 05 (Scott Davis) Staff Reviewer: Jason Swaggart

A request to rezone from RS5 to R6 zoning for property located at 709 Ward Street, approximately 300 feet west of Rosedale Avenue (0.34 acres), requested by Steve and Catherine Scott, applicants and owners. **Staff Recommendation: Disapprove.** 

#### APPLICANT REQUEST Zone change from RS5 to R6.

#### Zone Change

A request to rezone from Single-Family Residential (RS5) to One and Two-Family Residential (R6) zoning for property located at 709 Ward Street, approximately 300 feet west of Rosedale Avenue (0.34 acres).

#### Existing Zoning

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS5)</u> requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 7.41 dwelling units per acre. *RS5 would permit a maximum of one unit.* 

#### Proposed Zoning

<u>One and Two-Family Residential (R6)</u> requires a minimum 6,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 7.71 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots. *R6 would permit a maximum of one duplex lot for a total of two units.* 

CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS N/A

# EAST NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>T4 Urban Neighborhood Maintenance (T4 NM)</u> is intended to preserve the general character of existing urban neighborhoods. T4 NM areas will experience some change over time, primarily when buildings are expanded or replaced. When this occurs, efforts should be made to retain the existing character of the. Enhancements may be made to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

## Consistent with Policy?

No. While the T4 NM policy can support two-family residential zoning districts, the location for the proposed R6 district is not appropriate. A large area surrounding the subject property is zoned single-family residential (RS5). The policy could support two-family zoning districts at key locations, such as oversized corner lots. The property is located midblock, which is not an appropriate location for a two-family zoning district on a predominately single-family residential street and within a larger single-family residential district.

# FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION N/A

# PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

#### TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION Condition if approved

Traffic study may be required at time of development.

Maximum Uses in Existing Zoning District: RS5

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Single- Family Residential (210)	0.34	8.71 D	2 U	20	2	3

#### Maximum Uses in Proposed Zoning District: R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
Two -Family Residential* (210)	0.36	7.26 D	2 U	39	3	5

\*Based on two two-family lots.

#### Traffic changes between maximum: RS5 and R6

Land Use (ITE Code)	Acres	FAR/Density	Total Floor Area/Lots/Units	Daily Trips (weekday)	AM Peak Hour	PM Peak Hour
-	-	-	+2 U	+19	+1	+2

# STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION N/A

#### METRO SCHOOL BOARD REPORT Projected student generation existing RS5 district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High Projected student generation proposed R6 district: <u>0</u> Elementary <u>0</u> Middle <u>0</u> High

The proposed R6 district would not generate any additional students. Students would attend Shwab Elementary School, Here Baxter Middle School and Maplewood High School. There is capacity for additional students in all three schools. This information is based upon data from the school board last updated November 2015.

HARPETH VALLEY UTILITY DISTRICT RECOMMENDATION No issues

WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION N/A

#### STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends disapproval as the proposed R6 zoning district is not consistent with the T4 NM land use policy at this midblock location located within a wider area zoned for only single-family units.

Mr. Swaggart presented the staff recommendation of disapproval.

Councilman Scott Davis spoke in favor of the application.

Catherine Scott, applicant, spoke in favor of the application because this will continue the momentum for positive growth.

Councilman Davis noted that no one is present in opposition.

#### Chairman McLean closed the Public Hearing.

Mr. Clifton spoke in opposition to the application because this is spot zoning in the middle of a block.

Ms. Blackshear spoke in opposition as this is against policy.

Mr. Gee noted that while he appreciates the applicants desire to invest in the area, the rest of the area is zoned only for single family.

Council Lady Allen spoke in opposition to the application but will get a chance to hear it again when it goes to council. She would feel more comfortable rezoning the entire block.

Ms. Farr asked if there are any options short of rezoning the entire block.

Mr. Leeman noted that staff would not necessarily support rezoning the entire block but could look at strategic locations.

Ms. Farr spoke in opposition to the application for reasons already stated.

## Mr. Clifton moved and Ms. Blackshear seconded the motion to disapprove. (8-0)

# Resolution No. RS2016-37

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016Z-012PR-001 is Disapproved. (8-0)"

# Neighborhood Conservation Overlays

# 14. 2016NHC-001-001

BL2016-107\A. Davis **INGLEWOOD PLACE – JACKSON PLACE NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION OVERLAY** Various Maps, Various Parcel(s) Council District 07 (Anthony Davis) Staff Reviewer: Latisha Birkeland

A request to apply the provisions of the Inglewood Place - Jackson Park Neighborhood Conservation Overlay District to properties located along Ardee Avenue, Brush Hill Court, Brush Hill Road, Cedarwood Drive, E. Riverwood Drive, Earlene Drive, Eastdale Avenue, Eastdale Place, Glenshade Drive, Golf Street, Greenfield Avenue, Greenland Avenue, Howard Avenue, Inglewood Circle N., Inglewood Circle S., Jakes Avenue, Katherine Street, Kennedy Avenue, Kenwood Drive, Kingswood Avenue, Kirkland Avenue, Marion Avenue, McAlpine Avenue, McChesney Avenue, Newman Avene, Norvel Avenue, Oxford Street, Plymouth Avenue, Riverside Drive, Riverwood Drive, Shelton Avenue, Stratford Avenue, Sunnymeade Drive, and Winding Way (454 acres), requested by the Metro Historic Zoning Commission and Councilmember Anthony Davis, applicants, various property owners.

Staff Recommendation: Approve with an amendment.

## APPLICANT REQUEST Apply Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay.

#### Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay

A request to apply the provisions of the Inglewood Place - Jackson Park Neighborhood Conservation Overlay District to properties located along Ardee Avenue, Brush Hill Court, Brush Hill Road, Cedarwood Drive, E. Riverwood Drive, Earlene Drive, Eastdale Avenue, Eastdale Place, Glenshade Drive, Golf Street, Greenfield Avenue, Greenland Avenue, Howard Avenue, Inglewood Circle N., Inglewood Circle S., Jakes Avenue, Katherine Street, Kennedy Avenue, Kenwood Drive,

Kingswood Avenue, Kirkland Avenue, Marion Avenue, McAlpine Avenue, McChesney Avenue, Newman Avene, Norvel Avenue, Oxford Street, Plymouth Avenue, Riverside Drive, Riverwood Drive, Shelton Avenue, Stratford Avenue, Sunnymeade Drive, and Winding Way (454 acres).

## **Existing Zoning**

Single-Family Residential (RS7.5) requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 7.41 dwelling units per acre.

<u>Specific Plan-Mixed Use (SP-R)</u> requires a minimum 7,500 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 4.94 dwelling units per acre.

#### **Proposed Overlay**

<u>Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay Districts (NCZO)</u> are geographical areas which possess a significant concentration, linkage or continuity of sites, buildings, structures or objects which are united by past events or aesthetically by plan or physical development.

## CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS

#### Preserves Historic Resources

The Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay District is intended to preserve historic structures within the Inglewood Place and Jackson Park Neighborhoods through the implementation of development and design guidelines by the Metro Historic Zoning Commission and staff.

## EAST NASHVILLE COMMUNITY PLAN

<u>T4 Urban Neighborhood Maintenance (T4 NM)</u> is intended to preserve the general character of existing urban residential neighborhoods. T4 NM areas will experience some change over time, primarily when buildings are expanded or replaced. When this occurs, efforts should be made to retain the existing character of the neighborhood. T4 NM areas are served by high levels of connectivity with complete street networks, sidewalks, bikeways and existing or planned mass transit. Enhancements may be made to improve pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular connectivity.

<u>Conservation (CO)</u> is intended to preserve and enhance environmentally sensitive land in all Transect Categories except T1 Natural, T5 Center, and T6 Downtown. CO policy identifies land with sensitive environmental features including, but not limited to, steep slopes, floodway/floodplains, rare or special plant or animal habitats, wetlands and unstable or problem soils. The guidance for preserving or enhancing these features varies with what Transect they area in and whether or not they have already been disturbed.

## Consistent with Policy?

Yes. All policies encourage the preservation and protection of historic features. The proposed Inglewood Place – Jackson Park Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay District will aid implementation of the design principles provided for the land use policy.

#### REQUEST DETAILS

The original request for the proposed Inglewood Place – Jackson Park Neighborhood Conservation Overlay included both the Inglewood Place and Jackson Park neighborhoods and various other properties. The applicant has indicated his intention to amend the request to only include the Inglewood Place neighborhood along with some various properties; the Jackson Park neighborhood would then be removed from the Conservation Zoning Overlay District, if the Council Bill is amended by the Metro Council.

The properties to be included in the proposed Inglewood Place Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay are generally located east Gallatin Pike, south of Newman Avenue, north of Kirkland Avenue, and west of McGavock Pike. The area consists primarily of single-family residential with some two-family residential uses. This area also includes a few multi-family civic and institutional uses.

The following background information from the Metro Historical Commission staff was available in the staff report to the MHZC. This information refers to the application for the Inglewood Place – Jackson Park Neighborhood Conservation Overlay. The applicant may amend the request to limit the Neighborhood Conservation Overlay to only include the Inglewood Place neighborhood and a few various properties.

#### Metro Historic Zoning Commission staff recommendation

Applicable Ordinance: Article III. Historic Overlay Districts, 17.36.120 Historic districts defined.

A. Historic Preservation and Neighborhood Conservation Districts. These districts are defined as geographical areas which possess a significant concentration, linkage or continuity of sites, buildings, structures or objects which are united by past events or aesthetically by plan or physical development, and that meet one or more of the following criteria:

1. The district is associated with an event that has made a significant contribution to local, state or national history; or

2. It includes structures associated with the lives of persons significant in local, state or national history; or

3. It contains structures or groups of structures that embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period or method of construction, or that represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic values, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or

4. It has yielded or may be likely to yield archaeological information important in history or prehistory; or

5. It is listed or is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.

#### Background:

The proposed overlay includes two National Register of Historic Places districts that are currently under consideration. Both have been recommended by the Metro Historical Commission and are scheduled to be reviewed by the State Historic Review Board in early 2016. Staff with the State Historic Preservation Office (Tennessee Historical Commission) has determined that the districts are eligible for listing in the National Register; therefore, final approval from the National Park Service is expected. The neighborhood has been in discussion about the overlay since at least since 2008. The most recent public informational meeting was hosted by Councilman Davis and the neighborhood association on September 9, 2015 at the Litton Alumni Center on Gallatin Road. Earlier informational meetings took place on May 7, 2015 and November 22, 2010, also at the Litton Alumni Center on Gallatin Road. The Planning Commission's public hearing is scheduled for January 28, 2016 and Metro Council's on February 2, 2016.

A draft of the design guidelines has been available on the MHZC for several months. The most recent version, that now includes photographs and a revised history, was posted in late October.

## Analysis and Findings:

The proposed overlay meets section 17.36.120.A.5 of the ordinance since it is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places. The State Historic Preservation Office has received nominations to list two areas of the proposed overlay in the National Register of Historic Places. The two districts and the connecting area between exhibit a high level of integrity. Eighty percent of the resources in Inglewood Place are contributing and 90% of the resources in Jackson Park are contributing, according to the National Register of Historic Places nominations.

The proposed overlay also includes a portion between the two National Register districts that is from the same development period and with a similar development pattern and architectural styles and forms as those found within the boundaries of the two nominated districts. The connection between the two districts has an estimated 85% contributing properties. Staff finds the proposed overlay to be eligible for listing in the National Register and therefore meets section 17.36.120.A.5 of the ordinance for a neighborhood conservation zoning overlay.

The guidelines were written following the general format of previous neighborhood conservation design guidelines and based on the National Park Service's Secretary of Interior's Standards (Historic Preservation Act), as required by local and state law. It also includes specific guidance based on an architectural resource surveys conducted by History Inc., an independent consultant, for the National Register of Historic Places nominations. The guidelines include the Secretary of Interior Standards for Rehab.

# Recommendation

Staff suggests that the Commission recommend approval of the overlay to Metro Council finding the proposal meets standard 5 of section 17.36.120A of the code based on the fact that the area is eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places. Staff recommends adoption of the proposed design guidelines finding them to meet the Secretary of Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation, as required by local and state law.

#### METRO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

On December 16, 2015, the Metro Historic Zoning Commission recommended approval and adoption of the design guidelines for the Inglewood Place – Jackson Park Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay.

# STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with amendments to the proposed Neighborhood Conservation Overlay to remove all properties from the neighborhood conservation zoning overlay that are not located in the Inglewood Place Historic District and additional various properties and approval with an amendment to revise the name to Inglewood Park Neighborhood Conservation Zoning Overlay District.

Ms. Birkeland presented the staff recommendation of approval with an amendment.

Councilman Anthony Davis spoke in favor of the application.

Matthew Bond, 3519 Golf Street, spoke in favor of the application.

Carey Rogers, 1310 Howard Avenue, spoke in favor of the application as it is responsible development, not anti-development.

Keith Spadafino, 1413 Shelton Avenue, spoke in favor of the application as it strikes a reasonable balance between growth and preservation.

Maggie Troutman, 1302 McChesney Avenue, spoke in favor of the application because she wants to preserve the heritage that is there.

Nick DiGuiseppe, 3512 Kennedy Ave, spoke in favor of the application.

Jud Fuller spoke in favor of the application because it will maintain the character of the area.

Ivan Chester, 1316 McChesney Avenue, spoke in favor of the application because it is important to maintain smaller, historic contributing homes.

Melissa Bond spoke in favor of the application.

Rebecca Freeman, 1304 McChesney Avenue, spoke in favor of the application.

Nathan Weinberg, 3944 Moss Rose Drive, spoke in opposition to the application; this is potentially catastrophic for people that were counting on the ability to add on to their homes.

Mike Gallagher spoke in opposition to the application because it appears to be one size fits all.

Troy Kinsel, 1425 Inglewood Circle, spoke in opposition to the application as it requires homeowners to jump through hoops.

Curtis Stewart, 150 Grassland Drive, spoke in opposition to the application as it will decrease property values.

Jarrod Vestal, 1137A Kirkland Ave, spoke in opposition to the application.

Tess Mahiatis, 3900 Oxford Street, spoke in opposition to the application as it will stagnate growth.

Councilman Anthony Davis asked for approval.

#### Chairman McLean closed the Public Hearing.

Council Lady Allen spoke in favor of the application and noted that it will actually increase property values.

Mr. Gee spoke in favor of the application. It is a great neighborhood and this will preserve the unique character as well helping to increase property values. The Historic Commission unanimously approved this.

Ms. Blackshear spoke in favor of the application.

Mr. Clifton spoke in favor of the application but would be opposed if it was for the entire city.

Mr. Adkins spoke in favor of the application.

Ms. Farr spoke in favor of the application.

Ms. Hagan-Dier spoke in favor of the application.

#### Mr. Gee moved and Ms. Farr seconded the motion to approve with an amendment. (8-0)

#### Resolution No. RS2016-38

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016NHC-001-001 is Approved with an amendment. (8-0)"

# Neighborhood Landmark Overlays

# 15. 2016NL-001-001

**4909 INDIANA AVENUE** Map 091-11, Parcel(s) 232 Council District 20 (Mary Carolyn Roberts) Staff Reviewer: Alex Deus

A request to apply a Neighborhood Landmark Overlay District to property located at 4909 Indiana Avenue, approximately 245 feet west of 49th Avenue North, (0.55 acres), zoned R6, requested by Jeff Estepp, LLC, applicant and owner. **Staff Recommendation: Approve.** 

#### APPLICANT REQUEST Apply a Neighborhood Landmark Overlay.

#### Neighborhood Landmark Overlay

A request to apply a Neighborhood Landmark Overlay District to property located at 4909 Indiana Avenue, approximately 245 feet west of 49th Avenue North, (0.55 acres), zoned One and Two-Family Residential (R6).

#### **Existing Zoning**

<u>One and Two-Family Residential (R6)</u> is requires a minimum 6,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings and duplexes at an overall density of 7.71 dwelling units per acre including 25 percent duplex lots. *R6 would permit a maximum of 4 lots with 1 duplex lot for a total of 5 units.* 

#### **Proposed Zoning**

<u>Neighborhood Landmark Overlay District (NLOD)</u> is intended to preserve and protect landmark features whose demolition or destruction would constitute an irreplaceable loss to the quality and character of the neighborhood or community.

## **CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS**

N/A

## HISTORY

This property is located at 4909 Indiana Avenue and was constructed in 1955. The Church of God has served as a place for worship and provided neighborhood services to the West Nashville community for over six decades. In 2015, the property was acquired by a new owner with the intent of preserving the structure.

#### ANALYSIS

Section 17.36.420 of the Zoning Code defines a neighborhood landmark as a feature that has historic, cultural, architectural, civic, neighborhood or archeological value and/or importance; whose demolition or destruction would constitute an irreplaceable loss to the quality and character of a neighborhood.

To be eligible for this designation a property must meet one or more of the following criteria:

1. It is recognized as a significant element in the neighborhood and/or community;

2. It embodies characteristics that distinguish it from other features in the neighborhood and/or community;

3. Rezoning the property on which the feature exists to a general zoning district inconsistent with surrounding or adjacent properties such as, office, commercial, mixed-use, shopping center, or industrial zoning district would significantly impact the neighborhood and/or community;

4. Retaining the feature is important in maintaining the cohesive and traditional neighborhood fabric;

5. Retaining the feature will help to preserve the variety of buildings and structures historically present within the neighborhood recognizing such features may be differentiated by age, function and architectural style in the neighborhood and/or community; and

6. Retaining the feature will help to reinforce the neighborhood and/or community's traditional and unique character.

The applicant has had community conversations with neighbors who have expressed support for this application due to the community services that the congregation has offered the neighborhood for decades. The structure has become a recognizable landmark for neighbors with its vintage architectural style that have been preserved in the face of a changing landscape. Retaining this feature would reinforce the neighborhood's traditional and unique character.

In recommending approval of a neighborhood landmark district, the planning commission shall find that:

a. The feature is a critical component of the neighborhood context and structure;

b. Retention of the feature is necessary to preserve and enhance the character of the neighborhood;

c. The only reason to consider the application of the neighborhood landmark district is to protect and preserve the identified feature;

d. There is acknowledgement on the part of the property owner that absent the retention of the feature, the base zoning district is proper and appropriate and destruction or removal of the feature is justification for and will remove the neighborhood landmark overlay designation and return the district to the base zoning district prior to the application of the district;
e. It is in the community's and neighborhood's best interest to allow the consideration of an appropriate neighborhood landmark development plan as a means of preserving the designated feature; and
f. All other provisions of this section have been followed.

Staff finds that this application meets these six criteria. As mentioned, this structure has contributed to the neighborhood's character for over six decades by offering community services and as a place of worship. By retaining this feature, it would preserve the neighborhood's history. Absent the retention of the feature the base zoning is appropriate, as it would allow for residential uses, consistent with the adjacent neighborhood. By applying a Neighborhood Landmark Overlay to this property a critical structure of an established neighborhood can be preserved.

# FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION N/A

# PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION N/A

# WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION N/A

# STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff finds that this request meets the criteria for establishing a Neighborhood Landmark Overlay and recommends approval.

Approve. (8-0), Consent Agenda

# Resolution No. RS2016-39

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016NL-001-001 is Approved. (8-0)"

# J. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS

The Planning Commission will make the final decision on the items below.

# Urban Design Overlays: final site plans

# 16. 2002UD-001-009

**GREEN HILLS UDO SIGN MODIFICATION** Map 117-14, Parcel(s) 050 Council District 25 (Russ Pulley) Staff Reviewer: Andrew Collins

A request for a Modification to the Green Hills Urban Design Overlay (UDO) sign standards to allow three wall signs of 256 square feet each for the new Dillard's building, to be located on the South, East, and West facades respectively, where 100 square feet or 5% of the building facade facing the public street (whichever is less), is the maximum permitted individual area for a wall sign; for property located at 2140 Abbott Martin Road, zoned SCR (5.78 acres) requested by Barge, Waggoner, Sumner & Cannon, Inc., applicant; Dillard Tennessee Operating Ltd. Partnership, owner. **Staff Recommendation: Approve.** 

#### APPLICANT REQUEST

Modification to the UDO sign standards to allow three wall signs of 256 square feet each for the new Dillard's building along Abbott Martin Road, to be located on the south, east and west building facades.

#### **Modification**

A request for a Modification to the Green Hills Urban Design Overlay (UDO) sign standards to allow three wall signs of 256 square feet each for the new Dillard's building, to be located on the south, east, and west facades respectively, where 100 square feet or 5% of the building facade facing the public street (whichever is less) is the maximum individual area for a wall sign permitted, for property located at 2140 Abbott Martin Road.

#### **Existing Zoning**

<u>Shopping Center Regional (SCR)</u> is the base zoning and is intended for high intensity retail, office, and consumer service uses for a regional market area.

<u>Green Hills UDO</u> is an Urban Design Overlay that provides voluntary urban design standards for mixed use development within the Green Hills commercial area, with signage standards that are mandatory for all development within the UDO boundary.

# CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS N/A

#### **GREEN HILLS - MIDTOWN COMMUNITY PLAN**

<u>T5 – Regional Center (T5 RG)</u> is intended to enhance regional centers, encouraging their redevelopment as intense mixed use areas that serve multiple communities as well as the County and the surrounding region with supporting land uses that create opportunities to live, work, and play. T5 Regional Centers are pedestrian friendly areas, generally located at the intersection of two arterial streets, and contain commercial, mixed use, residential, institutional land uses.

#### Consistent with Policy?

Yes. The three signs proposed at 256 square feet each are necessary and typical for a regional malls anchor tenant's visibility, and are consistent with such intense mixed-use developments.

#### MODIFICATION REQUEST DETAILS

The applicant is requesting a modification to the following Sign Standards of the Green Hills UDO:

#### 1) Maximum Display Surface Area of Individual Signs

Building sign - wall mounted type: 100 SF, or 5% of the building facade facing the public wall, whichever is less.

Three wall mounted signs are proposed, each at 256 square feet of area. The proposed locations are on the south facade (Abbott Martin Road frontage), the west facade (Cleghorn Avenue frontage), and the east facade of the building (facing an internal private access drive).

#### ANALYSIS

The existing Dillard's is being redeveloped along Abbott Martin Road. As part of that that construction, the existing wall signs will be replaced. The applicant is also proposing a monument sign at the corner of Cleghorn Avenue and Abbott Martin Road that complies with the UDO. The three existing wall signs are 416.25 SF each located on the south, west, and east facades. The applicant is proposing to replace them with three wall signs of 256 square feet each. The proposed sign size exceeds the maximum allowed individual sign size of 100 SF or 5% of the facade wall facing the public street, whichever is less. Given the large facade walls of the anchor department store, the 5% calculation yields approximately 446 SF. Therefore 100 SF would be the maximum individual sign area permitted by the UDO.

The proposed signs are each significantly smaller than the existing wall signs by nearly 160 SF. In addition the total aggregate area of the proposed signage is approximately 768 SF, well within the limits allowed by UDO which permits a total aggregate sign area of 15% of the ground floor facade facing the public street or 105 SF, whichever is *greater* (per public street frontage). In this case, well over 1000 SF of total aggregate sign area is permitted. The signs are also each within the 5% facade calculation (approximately 446 SF). The proposed wall signs are internally LED illuminated channel letters, with sign dimensions of 8' tall x 32' wide. Their placement at the top of the building facades complies with the UDO and does not obscure architectural details. Given the intense commercial nature of the Green Hills Mall, staff would recommend any future amendment to the Green Hills UDO include amending the sign standards to better align with the existing mall anchor tenant's signage sizes.

#### PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

Approve with Conditions

• Comply with sight distance requirements for signage in Metro Zoning Code (for any ground signage).

#### STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval. The modification request is consistent with the UDO's vision for tasteful signage that reduces visual clutter, given that a significant reduction in the size of the existing wall signs will occur.

Approve. (7-0-1), Consent Agenda

#### Resolution No. RS2016-40

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2002UD-001-009 is Approved. (7-0-1)"

## Subdivision: Final Plats

## 17. 2015S-179-001

### G.W. HARDING'S ADDITION, RESUB LOTS 67 & 68

Map 081-15, Parcel(s) 128 Council District 21 (Ed Kindall) Staff Reviewer: Lisa Milligan

A request for final plat approval to create three lots on property located at 1909 Formosa Street, approximately 165 east of 21<sup>st</sup> Avenue North, zoned RS5 (0.43 acres), requested by Clint T. Elliott, applicant; Poplar Street Properties, LLC, owner. **Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions.** 

#### APPLICANT REQUEST Create 3 lots.

#### Final Plat

A request for final plat approval to create three lots on property located at 1909 Formosa Street, approximately 165 east of 21st Avenue North, zoned Single-Family Residential (RS5) (0.43 acres).

#### **Existing Zoning**

Single-Family Residential (RS5) requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 7.41 dwelling units per acre. RS5 would permit a maximum of 3 units.

#### **CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS**

Supports Infill Development

The proposed subdivision creates infill housing opportunity in an area that is served by existing infrastructure. Development in areas with adequate infrastructure is more appropriate than development in areas not served with adequate infrastructure, such as substandard roads, water and sewer, because it does not burden Metro with the cost of upgrading or building new infrastructure.

#### PLAN DETAILS

The plan proposes to create three lots from 1 existing parcel located on Formosa Street, east of 21<sup>st</sup> Avenue N. The property is approximately 0.43 acres in size. There is one existing home located on the lot which is proposed to be demolished. There are existing sidewalks along Formosa Street. Access is proposed to be limited to the existing alley.

The land use policy for the subject property is Urban Neighborhood Maintenance (T4 NM), which is subject to the compatibility criteria in Section 3-5.2 of the Subdivision Regulations. All three proposed lots meet the infill lot compatibility analysis. The subject property is proposed to be subdivided into three lots with the following areas and street frontages:

- Lot 1: 6,250 Sq. Ft., (0.143 Acres), and 41.67 Ft. of frontage;
- Lot 2: 6,250 Sq. Ft., (0.143 Acres), and 41.67 Ft. of frontage;
- Lot 3: 6,250 Sq. Ft., (0.143 Acres), and 41.67 Ft. of frontage.

#### ANALYSIS

#### Lot Compatibility

Section 3-5.2 of the Subdivision Regulations outlines the criteria for reviewing infill subdivisions located within the Suburban Neighborhood Maintenance policy area.

#### Zoning Code

Proposed lots meet the minimum standards of the RS5 zoning district.

#### Street Frontage

Proposed lots have frontage on a public street.

#### Density

The T4 Urban Neighborhood Maintenance policy no longer includes density limitations.

#### Community Character

1. Lot frontage: The proposed lots must have frontage either equal to or greater than 70% of the average frontage of surrounding parcels or equal to or greater than the surrounding lot with the least amount of frontage, whichever is greater. In this case, the lots created must be equal to or greater than 38 feet, which is equal to the surrounding a lot with the least amount of frontage. The proposed subdivision meets the lot frontage requirement.

Lot Frontage Analysis	
Minimum Proposed	41.67'
70% of Average	37'
Smallest Surrounding Parcel	38'

2. Lot size: The proposed lots must have lot area that is either equal to or greater than 70% of the lot size of the average size of surrounding parcels or equal to or larger than smallest surrounding lot, whichever is greater. In this case, the minimum lot area must be at least 5,548 square feet, which is equal to the smallest surrounding lot. The proposed subdivision meets the lot size requirement.

Lot Size Analysis	
Minimum Proposed	6,250 SF
70% of Average	5,500 SF
Smallest Surrounding Parcel	5,548 SF

3. Street Setback: The street setback would be as required by the Zoning Code.

4. Lot Orientation: All proposed lots are oriented toward Formosa Street.

#### Agency Review

All agencies have recommended approval.

#### Harmony of Development

The proposed subdivision meets the Community Character criteria. To further provide for the harmonious development of the community, the applicant has proposed that all access will be limited to the existing alley. Additionally, the applicant has proposed to limit height to 2 stories in 35 feet. All units will also include a raised foundation of 18" to 36".

# FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION Approved

WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION Approved

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION No exception taken

PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION No exception taken

#### STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval with conditions.

#### CONDITIONS

1. Prior to recordation, the existing residences shall be demolished and removed from the plat.

Approve with conditions. (8-0), Consent Agenda

Resolution No. RS2016-41

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2015S-179-001 is **Approved with conditions. (8-0)**" **CONDITIONS** 

1. Prior to recordation, the existing residences shall be demolished and removed from the plat.

## 18. 2016S-011-001

SKYLINE RIVERFRONT ESTATES Map 070-07, Parcel(s) 104 Council District 02 (DeCosta Hastings) Staff Reviewer: Alex Deus

A request for final plat approval to create three lots on property located at 906 Youngs Lane, approximately 1,365 feet west of Lathan Court, zoned R8 (1.85 acres), requested by GAM Engineering, Inc., applicant; Owen Ferguson, owner. **Staff Recommendation: Defer to the February 11, 2016, Planning Commission meeting.** 

# The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2016S-011-001 to the February 11, 2016, Planning Commission meeting. (8-0)

## 19. 2016S-018-001

HAYNIE'S CENTRAL PARK PLAN, RESUB LOTS 59-62 Map 094-05, Parcel(s) 017, 019, 020, 115

Council District 06 (Brett Withers) Staff Reviewer: Latisha Birkeland

A request for final plat approval to create five lots on properties located at 1109, 1111, 1113 and 1115 Ozark Street, approximately 160 feet west of S. 12th Street, zoned RS5 (0.74 acres), requested by Dale & Associates, applicant; Justin Hicks, owner.

#### Staff Recommendation: Approve with conditions.

#### APPLICANT REQUEST Create 5 lots.

Final Plat

A request for final plat approval to create five lots on properties located at 1109, 1111, 1113 and 1115 Ozark Street, approximately 160 feet west of South 12th Street, zoned Single-Family Residential (RS5) (0.74 acres).

<u>Single-Family Residential (RS5)</u> requires a minimum 5,000 square foot lot and is intended for single-family dwellings at a density of 7.41 dwelling units per acre. *RS5 would permit a maximum of 6 units* 

#### CRITICAL PLANNING GOALS

Supports Infill Development

The proposed subdivision creates infill housing opportunity in an area that is served by existing infrastructure. Development in areas with adequate infrastructure is more appropriate than development in areas not served with adequate infrastructure, such as substandard roads, water and sewer, because it does not burden Metro with the cost of upgrading or building new infrastructure.

#### PLAN DETAILS

The plan proposes to create five lots from four existing lots located on Ozark Street, west of South 12<sup>th</sup> Street. Access for all proposed lots is limited to the existing alley. The land use policy for the subject property is T4 Urban Neighborhood Evolving (T4 NE), which is not subject to the compatibility criteria in Section 3-5.2 of the Subdivision Regulations. The proposed subdivision is subject to section 3-5.3, as shown in the analysis.

Subdivision Regulations require sidewalks along Ozark Street. If the plat is approved, the applicant may construct the sidewalks or contribute the in-lieu fee for sidewalk construction.

The proposed lots will be designated as Critical Lots because the natural slope is 20 percent or greater. Prior to application for a building permit on a lot designated as Critical, a Critical Lot plan shall be submitted for review and approval.

### Proposed Subdivision

The property is proposed to be subdivided into five lots with the following areas and street frontages:

- Lot 1: 6,664 Sq. Ft., (0.15 Acres), and 44.36 Ft. of frontage;
- Lot 2: 6,635 Sq. Ft., (0.15 Acres), and 44.36 Ft. of frontage;
- Lot 3: 6,625 Sq. Ft., (0.15 Acres), and 44.36 Ft. of frontage;
- Lot 4: 6,616 Sq. Ft., (0.15 Acres), and 44.36 Ft. of frontage;
- Lot 5: 6,607 Sq. Ft., (0.15 Acres), and 44.36 Ft. of frontage.

#### ANALYSIS

Zoning Code\_ Proposed lots meet the minimum standards of the RS5 zoning district.

<u>Street Frontage</u> Proposed lots have frontage on a public street.

<u>Agency Review</u> All review agencies recommend approval.

FIRE MARSHAL RECOMMENDATION N/A

STORMWATER RECOMMENDATION Approved

WATER SERVICES RECOMMENDATION

Approved

TRAFFIC AND PARKING RECOMMENDATION No exception taken

## PUBLIC WORKS RECOMMENDATION

#### Approved with conditions

1) If sidewalks are required by Planning and the applicant chooses to construct rather than pay the in-lieu fee, they should be shown fully within the right-of-way, and labeled on the plan per Public Works standards. This includes curb and gutter, 4' grass strip, 5' sidewalk, or as determined by Public Works, and a minimum of 20 feet of street pavement width. Final construction plans must be submitted that address any related drainage improvements, grading, utility relocation(s), and tree removal. A permit is required from The Department of Public Works prior to commencing any work within the right-of-way.

#### STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff finds that this subdivision meets the infill subdivision requirements. Therefore, staff recommends approval with conditions.

#### CONDITIONS

1. Access shall be limited to the alley only for all lots.

2. Sidewalks are required along the Ozark Street of the proposed subdivision. Prior to final plat recordation, one of the options must be chosen related to the required sidewalks:

a. Submit a bond application and post a bond with the Planning Department,

b. Construct sidewalk and have it accepted by Public Works,

c. Submit contribution in-lieu of construction to the Planning Department, 5 additional lots will require a \$21,292.00 contribution to Pedestrian Benefit Zone 2-A.

d. Construct an equal length of sidewalk within the same Pedestrian Benefit Zone, in a location to be determined in consultation with the Planning Department and the Public Works Department, or

e. Add the following note to the plat: "No building permit is to be issued on any of the proposed lots until the required sidewalk is constructed per the Department of Public Works specifications." Sidewalk shall be shown and labeled on the plan per Public Works Standards with the required curb and gutter.

3. A raised foundation of 18"- 36" is required for all residential structures.

4. Height is limited to two stories in 35 feet.

Approve with conditions. (8-0), Consent Agenda

#### Resolution No. RS2016-42

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that 2016S-018-001 is **Approved with conditions. (8-0)**" **CONDITIONS** 

1. Access shall be limited to the alley only for all lots.

2. Sidewalks are required along the Ozark Street of the proposed subdivision. Prior to final plat recordation, one of the options must be chosen related to the required sidewalks:

a. Submit a bond application and post a bond with the Planning Department,

b. Construct sidewalk and have it accepted by Public Works,

c. Submit contribution in-lieu of construction to the Planning Department, 5 additional lots will require a \$21,292.00 contribution to Pedestrian Benefit Zone 2-A.

d. Construct an equal length of sidewalk within the same Pedestrian Benefit Zone, in a location to be determined in consultation with the Planning Department and the Public Works Department, or

e. Add the following note to the plat: "No building permit is to be issued on any of the proposed lots until the required sidewalk is constructed per the Department of Public Works specifications." Sidewalk shall be shown and labeled on the plan per Public Works Standards with the required curb and gutter. 3. A raised foundation of 18"- 36" is required for all residential structures.

4. Height is limited to two stories in 35 feet.

## 20. 2016S-025-001

**BEAUMONT PLACE, RESUB LOTS 7 & 8** Map 083-02, Parcel(s) 314 Map 083-06, Parcel(s) 128 Council District 06 (Brett Withers) Staff Reviewer: Latisha Birkeland

A request for final plat approval to create three lots on properties located within the Eastwood Neighborhood Conservation Overlay District at 300 and 302 Manchester Avenue, at the northeast corner of Manchester Avenue and Benjamin Street, zoned R6 (0.5 acres), requested by Dale & Associates, Inc., applicant; Grayson D. Adler, Melissa Tedesco, Timothy Kenefick, and Robert D. Young, owners.

Staff Recommendation: Defer to the February 25, 2016, Planning Commission meeting.

The Metropolitan Planning Commission deferred 2016S-016-001 to the February 25, 2016, Planning Commission meeting. (8-0)

#### Κ. OTHER BUSINESS

21. Employee contract renewal for Anita McCaig

Approve (8-0), Consent Agenda

#### Resolution No. RS2016-43

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that the Employee contract renewal for Anita McCaig is Approved. (8-0)"

- 22. Historic Zoning Commission Report
- Board of Parks and Recreation Report
- 24. Executive Committee Report
- 25. Accept the Director's Report and Approve Administrative Items

Approve (8-0), Consent Agenda

#### Resolution No. RS2016-44

"BE IT RESOLVED by The Metropolitan Planning Commission that the Director's Report and Administrative Items are Approved. (8-0)"

## Legislative Update

#### MPC CALENDAR OF UPCOMING MATTERS L.

#### January 28, 2015

4pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center

#### Location change for the following MPC meeting:

#### February 11, 2016

4 pm, 2601 Bransford Avenue, Metropolitan Public Schools Administration Building

#### February 25, 2016

4pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center

## M. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:03 p.m.

Chairman

Secretary



METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT OF NASHVILLE AND DAVIDSON COUNTY Planning Department Metro Office Building, 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor 800 Second Avenue South Nashville, Tennessee 37219

Date:	January 28, 2016
То:	Metropolitan Nashville-Davidson County Planning Commissioners
From:	J. Douglas Sloan III
Re:	Executive Director's Report

The following items are provided for your information.

## A. Planning Commission Meeting Projected Attendance (6 members are required for a quorum)

- 1. Planning Commission Meeting:
  - a. Attending: Gee; Hagan-Dier; Allen; McLean
  - b. Not Attending: Dalton; Haynes
- 2. Legal Representation Emily Lamb will be attending

## **B. Executive Office**

- 1. We have upgraded our use of the NextDoor social media platform we can now direct postings and surveys to individual neighborhoods or Council districts.
- 2. We have finished writing and shooting a video about NashvilleNext which will be shown at the American Planning Association convention in April.
- 3. Craig Owensby and Jennifer Higgs met with Metro Schools curriculum directors on 1/21 our planners and GIS personnel will be working with Metro students to increase understanding and awareness of planning issues.

## C. Land Development

1. Land Development has hired two Planner 2s: Patrick Napier and Deborah Sullivan, whose start date is February 1. A Planning Tech position is still open.

## D. Community Plans/Design Studio

1. Community Plans is beginning to schedule interviews for the open Planner 2 position.

## Administrative Approved Items and Staff Reviewed Items Recommended for approval by the Metropolitan Planning Commission

In accordance with the Rules and Procedures of the Metropolitan Planning Commission, the following applications have been reviewed by staff for conformance with applicable codes and regulations. Applications have been approved on behalf of the Planning Commission or are ready to be approved by the Planning Commission through acceptance and approval of this report. Items presented are items reviewed **through 01/20/2016**.

APPROVALS	# of Applics	# of Applics '16
Specific Plans	3	3
PUDs	1	2
UDOs	0	0
Subdivisions	2	2
Mandatory Referrals	3	3
Grand Total	9	10

			•	••	MPC Approval roved development plan.	
Date Submitted	Staff Det	termination	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District # (CM Name)
					A request for final site plan approval for property located at 1518 16th Avenue South, approximately 520 feet south of Horton Avenue and located within the South Music Row Neighborhood Conservation Overlay District, (0.22 acres), to permit the development of a 10,330 square foot	
8/13/2015 10:59	1/13/2016	RECOM APPR	2015SP-035- 002	1518 16TH AVE SOUTH (FINAL)	office building, requested by Convent Place Partners, LLC, applicant and owner.	17 (Colby Sledge)
6/11/2015 11:19	1/15/2016	RECOM APPR	2014SP-016- 004	We-Ho Temporary Food Truck Lot	A request for final site plan approval for property located at 610 Merritt Avenue, at the northeast corner of Martin Street and Merritt Avenue (1.42), to permit a temporary food truck park with parking, requested by Hawkins Partners, applicant; Core Development, owner.	17 (Colby Sledge)
8/27/2015			2014SP-055-		A request for final site plan approval for properties located at 1106, 1110, 1114, 1200, 1202 and 1204 Litton Avenue and a portion of property located at 1120 Litton Avenue, approximately 200 feet east of Gallatin Pike (2.96 acres), to permit 121 residential units in two buildings, requested by Perry Engineering, LLC, applicant; Harpeth Development, LLC,	
11:06	1/19/2016	RECOM APPR	002	SOLO EAST (FINAL)	owner.	07 (Anthony Davis)

Finding	URBAN DESIGN OVERLAYS (finals and variances only) : MPC Approval Finding: all design standards of the overlay district and other applicable requirements of the code have been satisfied.						
Date Submitted	Staff Determination		Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District # (CM Name)	
NONE							

F	PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (finals and variances only) : MPC Approval						
Date Submitted	Staff Det	ermination	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District # (CM Name)	
					A request for final site plan approval for a portion of the Marhaden Pointe Planned Unit Development Overlay located at 3681 Hamilton Church Road, approximately 1,900 feet east of Hobson Pike (9.32 acres), zoned RS10, to permit 31 lots, requested by		
7/30/2015 11:16	1/8/2016	RECOM APPR	2005P-016-001	MARHADEN POINTE, PHASE 2	Wamble & Associates, PLLC, applicant; Aamon Shreibman, owner.	33 (Sam Coleman)	

	MANDATORY REFERRALS: MPC Approval						
Date Submitted	Staff Det	termination	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District (CM Name)	
12/29/2015 8:29	1/7/2016	RECOM APPR	2016M-004EN- 001	THE ESCAPE GAME AERIAL ENCROACHMENT	A request to allow an aerial encroachment comprised of one 5' 0" wide and 5' 0" high, double-faced, internally illuminated projecting sign encroaching the public right-of-way for property located at 162 3rd Avenue North, requested by Joslin and Son Signs, applicant; Banner Building Partnership, owner.	19 (Freddie O'Connell)	
12/29/2015 9:02	1/7/2016	RECOM APPR	2016M-005EN- 001	ONEC1TY AERIAL ENCROACHMENT	A request to allow the installation of 5 pedestrian/street light poles, street trees, landscape lighting and irrigation encroaching the public right-of-way at the entrance to the oneC1TY development located at 3001 Charlotte Avenue, requested by Civil Site Design Group, PLLC, applicant; Nashcam, L.P., owner.	21 (Ed Kindall)	
8/19/2015 14:46	1/11/2016	RECOM APPR	2015M-022EN- 001	OLMSTEAD SOBRO ENCROACHMENT	A request to allow encroachments comprised of individual apartment unit balconies, an awning, trash receptacles and benches and underground enroachments to provide irrigation lines to street trees encroaching the public right-of-way for properties located at 501, 509, 511, 517, and 519 5th Avenue South, requested by CFD Sobro, LLC., applicant; various property owners.	19 (Freddie O'Connell)	

Finding	INSTITUTIONAL OVERLAYS (finals and variances only) : MPC Approval Finding: Final site plan conforms to the approved campus master development plan and all other applicable provisions of the code.						
Date Submitted	Staff Determinat	ion Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District # (CM Name)		
NONE							

	SUBDIVISIONS: Administrative Approval					
Date Submitted	Date Approved	Action	Case #	Project Name	Project Caption	Council District (CM Name)
12/2/2015 11:03	1/12/2016	RECOM APPR	20165-015-001	W.W. HENRY, RESUB PART OF LOT 5	A request for final plat approval to shift lot lines between properties located at 831 and 913 Hillview Heights, approximately 155 feet east of Vaulx Lane, zoned R10 (0.44 acres), requested by Campbell, McRae & Associates Surveying, Inc, applicant; William Smallman, Dorothy Hyde, & Frank Holbert, owners.	17 (Colby Sledge)
11/24/2015				1821 JEFFERSON STREET DEVELOPMENT CONSOLIDATION	A request to create one lot on properties located at 1891, 1821, 1901 and 1903 Jefferson Street, approximately 250 feet east of 21st Avenue North and located within the Jefferson Street Redevelopment District, zoned CS (0.63 acres), requested by HFR Design, applicant; 1821 Jefferson Street Development,	
8:50	1/13/2016	RECOM APPR	2016S-008-001	PLAT	owner.	21 (Ed Kindall)

	Performance Bonds: Administrative Approvals						
Date Approved	Administrative Action	Bond #	Project Name				
1/5/16	Approved Extension	2013B-014-004	BYRON CLOSE				
	Approved		PARK PRESERVE, PH . 1A, 1ST REV. (FORMERLY PARK				
1/11/16	Extension/Reduction	2009B-009-008	PRESERVE PUD, PHASE 1A)				
1/5/16	Approved Extension	2006B-096-009	CHATEAU VALLEY, PHASE 4				
	Approved						
1/5/16	Extension/Reduction	2009B-013-007	CHATEAU VALLEY, PHASES 6 AND 7				

## Schedule

Α.	Thursday, January 28, 2016 - MPC Meeting; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building,
	Sonny West Conference Center

- **B.** Thursday, February 11, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting;</u> 4pm, Metro Nashville Public Schools, Board Room, 2601 Bransford Avenue
- C. Thursday, February 25, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting;</u> 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- D. Thursday, March 10, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting</u>; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- E. Thursday, March 24, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting</u>; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- F. Thursday, April 14, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting;</u> 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- **G.** Thursday, April 28, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting;</u> 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- H. Thursday, May 12, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting</u>; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center
- I. Thursday, May 26, 2016 <u>MPC Meeting</u>; 4 pm, 700 Second Ave. South, Howard Office Building, Sonny West Conference Center